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Financial Highlight
B HE

13.4%

Revenue increased by 3.4%
to approximately HK$224.8
million
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

o Revenue increased by 3.4% to approximately HK$224.8
million

o Revenue from mortgage loan receivables increased by 4.1%
to approximately HK$158.7 million

o Profit attributable to the equity shareholders decreased by
0.1% to approximately HK$100.8 million

o Net profit margin decreased by 1.5 percentage points to
44.9%

o Basic earnings per share is HK$5.1 cents

o Gross pawn loan receivables increased by 8.1% to
approximately HK$141.5 million

o Gross mortgage loan receivables decreased by 2.3% to
approximately HK$1,223.3 million
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4.1%

Revenue from mortgage loan
receivables increased by 4.1%

to approximately HK$1 58.7
million
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increased by 25.7% to

approximately HK$685.4 million
BN25.7% 24
685,400,0007% 7T

Total amount of new pawn
loans granted increased by
25.7% to approximately

HK$685.4 million

B3R E B AR N
25.7% 24

Financial Highlight

increased by 10.0% to
419 cases
#1010.0% £41978

Number of new pawn loans
(larger than HK$100,000)
granted increased by 10.0% to

419 cases

BEBETREER (KR
100,000/ C) EBEEMN10.0%

MBRE
increased by 15.6% to
approximately HK$3.7 million
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Average amount of mortgage
loans granted increased
by 15.6% to approximately

HK$3.7 million

EEBURB AR
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Total amount of new pawn loans granted increased by
25.7% to approximately HK$685.4 million

Average amount of pawn loans granted increased by 30.6%
to approximately HK$8,200 per transaction

Number of new pawn loans (larger than HK$100,000)
granted increased by 10.0% to 419 cases

Total amount of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
2.9% to approximately HK$785.5 million

Average amount of mortgage loans granted increased by
15.6% to approximately HK$3.7 million

Number of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
17.3% to 206 cases

Net interest margin for pawn loans increased by 0.2
percentage points to 40.6%

Net interest margin for mortgage loans decreased by 0.6
percentage points to 9.2%

As at 28 February 2019, the average loan-to-value ratio of
the mortgage loan portfolio was kept at around 51%
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFEMBERE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-0F —NF —E—tF N2 —T-hE
Profitability data (HK$'000) ZEFgH8E (F8x)
Revenue from pawn loan MEERER W=
business
~ Interest income from pawn - HEEFZF S
loans L/ON 7,843 58,754 61,808 61,877 57,656
— Interest income from pawn - AT {ETAER
loan receivables at fair value ~ ZREWHEETZ
through profit or loss FEWA 51,351 - - - -
— Gain on disposal of - HELKEEEY
repossessed assets Wz 6,914 6,107 4,801 (814) 3,383
Total revenue from pawn loan — HEEHER 2 BN
business 66,108 64,861 66,609 61,063 61,039
Revenue from mortgage loan  IRIBEME R ERS 2
business
— Interest income from - RIBEIRER
mortgage loans ZFEHA 158,655 152,415 148,541 125,595 85,478
Total revenue Bl 224,763 217,276 215,150 186,658 146,517
Operating profit gl 163,572 158,162 157,647 132,027 107,652
Profit attributable to equity R R F
shareholders 100,820 100,908 103,230 91,366 80,091
Earnings per share — basic FRAF - EAR (L)
(HK$ cents) 5.1 4.8 49 4.4 *3.9
Profitability ratios (%) BRI R (%)
Operating profit margin IR E 72.8 72.8 73.3 70.7 73.5
Net profit margin B 44.9 46.4 48.0 489 54.7
Effective tax rate (Note 1) BEREBE (M) 17.1 16.4 16.4 16.5 16.7
Return on total assets (Note 2) BE &5 (MH5F2) 7.0 6.9 7.6 8.1 10.6
Return on shareholders’ equity AR EREZS IR (HIzE3)
(Note 3) 123 12.8 14.0 13.7 17.7
Net interest margin (Note 4) FEE (Mi34) 124 13.1 14.5 17.5 18.3
— pawn loans - BEEN 40.6 40.4 40.3 40.5 43.1
- mortgage loans - RBEAER 9.2 9.8 10.8 13.1 15.9
Note 1  Effective income tax rate is equal to the current tax divided by 31 FBTEAEHRRENESEE 2 BT ER LS HA
the profit before taxation for the respective year i )
Note 2 Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year  [ffs¥2 EBEARELORIILFERNENGIUNSFENEEE
by the total assets as at the respective year HEtE
Note 3 Return on total equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year — Mff5F3 #ERAREOIMIILFERNGEFNB NS FE 2 FE
by the total equity as at the respective year HEtE
Note 4 Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income — Mi¥4 FRZFLZIERNEEEBHRE ERRIRIBET

in respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less our
finance costs, divided by the average of month-end gross loan
receivables balances of the corresponding loans during the year

* Amounts for the year ended 28 February 2015 was adjusted for the
bonus issued on 18 August 2016.
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Five-year Financial Summary

LEMBHE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“e-AE ZT-\F  CE-tF  FT-RF “T-EF

Operating ratios (as a e E (hikaE

percentage of revenue) (%) HBEZLt) (%)

Staff costs BTHA 13.0 12.9 12.6 13.6 15.0
Rental expenses HeM% 6.2 6.2 6.0 6.8 7.2
Advertising and promotions EEREE 4.4 5.2 5.4 5.3 43

Assets and liabilities data BENEEHE

(HK$'000) (F#%x)
Non-current assets FRBEE 84,131 89,242 94,665 82,243 79,146
Current assets MEEE 1,357,172 1,376,892 1,269,878 1,042,906 675,515
Current liabilities mEAaE 455,909 515,477 489,334 333,589 227,405
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 162,565 162,528 136,773 124,966 75,365
Capital and reserves EARR 822,829 788,129 738,436 666,594 451,891
Gross loan receivables [EE S BER 1,364,806 1,382,962 1,294,193 1,032,784 670,197

— Gross pawn loan receivables - JEWHEEREEHE 141,511 130,866 143,140 141,755 124,240

— Gross mortgage loan - BRIRIBERER

receivables B 1,223,295 1,252,096 1,151,053 890,779 543,189
— Gross unsecured loan - EUEREER
receivables Rk - - - 250 2,768

Assets and working capital ZBEEREELESHE

data
Current ratios (Note 5) BN R (MFES) 3.0 2.7 2.6 3.1 3.0
Gearing ratios (%) (Note 6) A% (%) (Fi3E6) 73.6 84.4 80.8 63.7 63.7
Net assets value per share (HK$) B EEFE (Bx)

(Note 7) (PF3E7) 0.424 0.377 0.345 0.314 1.0
Note 5 Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current  [fis¥5 B R DIERFRZ RBDEERARD B &

liabilities as at the respective year end i

Note 6 Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation — Hfit6 (EEHRIRKFERZEEE (BTER - B%

{5
of bank loans, overdrafts, obligations under finance leases, other MEMERE HUWER BEBERARIZERRL
loans, loans from immediate holding company and debt securities BITEBES AR ) RS EETE
issued) by total equity as at the respective year end
Note 7 Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing net assets by ~ Ffi3t7 GREEFHEIIRSERNEEFERIUBRNE
the total number of shares as at the respective year end EtE

o &
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Five-year Financial Summary

LEMBHE

Total revenue from pawn loan business
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Return on shareholders’ equity
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Chairman Statement
FRERE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “our
Company”), and its subsidiaries (together with the Company
collectively referred to as the “Group” or “our Group”), | am
delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 28 February 2019 ("FY2019").

In FY2019, the local property market had experienced a downturn
but rebounded subsequently. Although the mortgage loan
business of the Group has continued to achieve satisfactory and
healthy growth, the Board considers that the future market is still
unpredictable amid the uncertainties of the global economy and
the ongoing trade conflict between China and the United States.
Therefore, the Group tends to continue to focus on reinforcing
its risk management policy and to be proactive in adopting timely
measures to balance its risk and return in the long run.

In regard to the pawn loan business, the Group is actively
exploring the possibility of developing an online pawn loan
service, which aims to make the pawning process simpler and
more accessible for everyone, everywhere. It is believed that such
24/7 service allows the Group to cater to the needs of the busy
generation, and also helps to promote our pawn loan business.
Pawn shops are a traditional industry, it is important to keep
abreast with technology and innovation.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the unremitting efforts of our management team and
employees. We will continue to seize opportunities and strive to

create the best interests for our shareholders and the Company.

Chan Kai Ho, Edward
Chairman and Executive Director

28 May 2019
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group is a financing service provider in Hong Kong operating
under the brand name of “Oi Wah", which is principally engaged
in providing secured financing, including mortgage loans and
pawn loans.

MORTGAGE LOAN BUSINESS

During FY2019, the mortgage loan business remained as a major
source of income of the Group. Revenue generated from the
mortgage loan business in FY2019 accounted for approximately
70.6% of the Group's total revenue during the year. During the
year, the mortgage loan business maintained a stable growth with
interest income increased from approximately HK$152.4 million for
the year ended 28 February 2018 (“FY2018") to HK$158.7 million
in FY2019, representing an increase of 4.1% or HK$6.3 million.
The mortgage loan receivables reached HK$1,223.3 million as at
28 February 2019. During the year, there were 206 new cases of
mortgage loan transactions, with an average loan size of HK$3.7
million.

During the year, the average loan-to-value ratio for the first
mortgage was around 51.0%, while the average of overall loan-
to-value ratio for subordinate mortgage was around 51.9%, in
which the average loan-to-value ratio of subordinate mortgage
that the Group participated in was around 15.9%.

Management Discussion

and Analysis
BEEBHARAN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDWN

PAWN LOAN BUSINESS

During FY2019, the revenue generated from the pawn loan
business increased from HK$64.9 million to HK$66.1 million,
representing an increase of 1.8% or HK$1.2 million. Also, the
aggregate loan amount increased by 25.7% or HK$140.0 million
from approximately HK$545.4 million in FY2018 to HK$685.4
million in FY2019.

In FY2019, the Group recorded 419 transactions of pawn loan
that exceeded HK$0.1 million. The average loan amount increased
from approximately HK$6,200 to approximately HK$8,100 per
transaction. The Group will continue to diversify its collaterals to
other luxurious items, such as automobiles and yachts, as well as
to channel resources to advertising and promotion (especially for
online channels) to enhance the Group's brand awareness.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

During the year, the luxurious goods market has experienced a
positive growth owing to rising demand from various sectors. The
Group is optimistic about the prospects of the pawn loan segment
and anticipates to achieve a steady growth.

In FY2019, the local property market experienced a correction
and thus turned active and energetic again. Although the Group
maintained a stable growth in the mortgage loan business,
the Directors considered that a prudent and cautious approach
was still necessary amid the unstable and uncertain economic
environment.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our Group's revenue increased from approximately HK$217.3
million for FY2018 to approximately HK$224.8 million for FY2019,
representing an increase of approximately HK$7.5 million or 3.4%.

The increase was attributable to an increase in our interest income
from the mortgage loan business by approximately HK$6.3
million or 4.1% from approximately HK$152.4 million in FY2018
to approximately HK$158.7 million in FY2019. The increase
was mainly due to the continuous expansion of our mortgage
loan portfolio in FY2019. The average month-end balance for
the gross mortgage loan receivables for the year increased from
approximately HK$1,178.7 million in FY2018 to approximately
HK$1,273.3 million in FY2019, where the total amount of new
mortgage loans granted was approximately HK$765.5 million
during FY2019.

1 2 Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Our performance in the pawn loan business remained steady.
Revenue generated from our pawn loan business increased
by approximately HK$1.2 million or 1.8% from approximately
HK$64.9 million in FY2018 to approximately HK$66.1 million in
FY2019. Such an increase was due to the increase in our interest
income derived from our pawn loan receivables of approximately
HK$0.4 million, as well as the increase in revenue from disposal of
repossessed assets of approximately HK$0.8 million in FY2019.

The increase in our interest income generated from our pawn
loan receivables was primarily attributable to the increase in the
aggregate amount of pawn loans granted. The amount rose from
approximately HK$545.4 million in FY2018 to approximately
HK$685.4 million in FY2019 with the average amount of pawn
loans granted increased from approximately HK$6,200 per
transaction in FY2018 to approximately HK$8,100 per transaction
in FY2019.

Revenue from disposal of repossessed assets represents the gain/
(loss) of the Group as we sold the repossessed assets in the event
of default in repayment of our pawn loans. The increase in our
gain on disposal of repossessed assets in FY2019 was mainly
due to (i) bounce back on the secondhand market in branded
watches; and (ii) the gold price per ounce rose from US$1,180 in
August 2018 to US$1,300 in February 2019. Since every pawn
loan has a term of four lunar months, revenue was derived from
the appreciation of gold price and branded watches in FY2019
and thus an increase in gain on disposal of repossessed assets in
FY2019 was recorded.

Other revenue

Other revenue increased from approximately HK$4.2 million in
FY2018 to HK$4.9 million in FY2019, representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.7 million or 16.7%, which was mainly due to
the increase in credit-related fee income by approximately HK$1.3
million in FY2019.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses increased by approximately HK$2.6 million
or 4.2% from approximately HK$62.5 million in FY2018 to
approximately HK$65.1 million in FY2019.

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$1.3 million or 4.6%
from approximately HK$28.0 million in FY2018 to approximately
HK$29.3 million in FY2019. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in salaries and other benefits of approximately
HK$0.9 million in FY2019.
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Rental expenses increased by approximately HK$0.7 million or 5.7%
from approximately HK$12.3 million in FY2018 to HK$13.0 million
in FY2019. The increase was mainly due to the increase in the
monthly rent for the pawnshops during the year.

Despite an increase in the staff costs and rental expenses in
FY2019, other operating expenses increased from approximately
HK$22.2 million in FY2018 to approximately HK$22.8 million
in FY2019. This was mainly due to an increase in legal and
professional fees by approximately HK$1.5 million, which was
offset by the decrease in advertising expenses by approximately
HK$1.4 million.

Finance costs

The finance costs increased by approximately HK$4.5 million
or 12.0% from approximately HK$37.5 million in FY2018 to
approximately HK$42.0 million in FY2019. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in average month-end balance for other loans
and loans from the immediate holding company of approximately
HK$51.2 million and HK$17.4 million in FY2019 respectively.

Charge for impairment losses on loan receivables
For FY2019

The charge for impairment losses on loan receivables of HK$1.0
million in FY2019 was measured based on the new impairment
requirement under HKFRS 9. The charge for impairment losses
was attributable to a mortgage loan which had been overdue for
more than 1 year as the management considered that there is an
increasing possibility that the value of the collateral of the said
loan cannot fully cover the outstanding amount.

For FY2018

Based on HKAS 39, the impairment losses on loan receivables
charged to profit or loss in FY2018 of approximately HK$725,000
were attributable to the net effect of (i) the subsequent reassessment
on the recoverability of previously impaired loan receivables that
were individually assessed and being charged to profit or loss of
approximately HK$925,000; and (ii) the impairment losses on loan
receivables that were collectively assessed and being credited to
profit or loss of approximately HK$200,000.

Income tax expenses

The Group's effective tax rate increased from 16.4% for FY2018
to 17.1% for FY2019. The increase in the effective tax rate was
mainly due to part of the advertising expenses amounted to
approximately HK$5.4 million may not be qualified as deductible
expenses. With a view of possible outflow of resources, a tax
provision of approximately HK$0.9 million in respect of the
expenses was provided in FY2019.
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Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Our Group's profit for FY2019 slightly decreased to approximately
HK$100.8 million from approximately HK$100.9 million in FY2018,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$0.1 million or 0.1%.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the increase in expenses
in staff costs, rental expenses and finance costs which amounted
to HK$1.3 million, HK$0.7 million and HK$4.5 million respectively,
netting off the increase in revenue of approximately HK$7.5
million and the decrease in advertising costs of approximately
HK$1.4 million.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 28 February 2019, cash and cash equivalents (net of
bank overdraft) amounted to approximately HK$36.2 million,
representing a net decrease of approximately HK$3.6 million as
compared to the position as at 28 February 2018. The decrease
was attributable to the following items:
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For the year For the year

ended 28 ended 28
February 2019 February 2018
Bz H=
—E-NF —E-NF
—A=+N Bk Z—A=-+NHIt
FE FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net cash generated from operating activities A TSRS 358 166,520 37,114
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and BB  WE k&R E 2 7E
equipment (1,884) (12)
Repayment of other loans EMERZER (26,391) (17,016)
Proceeds from debt securities issued, net of BEBITERES S HRIE
issuing expenses (BkBRETHE) - 25,875
(Repayment of)/proceeds from bank loans RITERZ (BR) /FEFRE (1,417) 47,843
(Decrease)/increase in loans from the immediate  EBEBIZRATZER GRL)
holding company 0 (32,000) 12,500
Payment for repurchase of shares BRI (D 2 FKIE (50,367) (20,064)
Dividend paid BERRE (15,840) (31,151)
Finance costs paid B E KA (42,145) (37,065)
Other net outflow HAtm i F58 (161) (228)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReEMBEEEY (L)
equivalents EHFEE (3,685) 17,796
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Pledge of assets

As at 28 February 2019, the Group had pledged its mortgage loan
receivables with net book value of HK$597.8 million (28 February
2018: HK$498.5 million) for the purpose of obtaining facilities
from banks and other independent third parties.

Contingent liabilities

There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at

BEEEM

NEMBIE=TTRE

FREE

RZZE-NF_A-+NB ALEEEEFEEREDF
{8/597,800,0008 T (ZE—NF_A=-+N\8:
498,500,000/ 7T ) 2 FEBUIZ BRI E 5 - AERURTT

RZZ-NAF-_A-+N\RB ARELEEFAEAK

28 February 2019. NEtE-
Key financial ratios FTEBMKER
As at As at
28 February 28 February
2019 2018
R-ZB—h&F WZZE—N\EF
—HA=+N\H —A=+N\H
Current ratio™ TENLE RO 3.0x 2.7x
Gearing ratio? BB 73.6% 84.4%
For the
year ended For the
28 February year ended
2019 28 February 2018
BZE BHZE
—EZE-hF —E-NF
—A=+NBL Z—A=-+NBI
FE FE
Return on total assets® BEBERR 7.0% 6.9%
Return on equity® HEzmEIR@ 12.3% 12.8%
Net profit margin® HEA R 44.9% 46.4%
Net interest margin® FEEO 12.4% 13.1%
— pawn loan services — HE RS 40.6% 40.4%
— mortgage loan services — RBEIRE KRS 9.2% 9.8%
Notes: Hat

(1) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current (1) HELEDNESERZ RBEERURSDEENE -
liabilities as at the respective year end.

(2)  Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation  (2) EELEDNESERZEEE (RITEK -BX @&
of bank loans, overdrafts, obligations under finance leases, loans HERE BEBZERARCENR  EMERKBEET
from the immediate holding company, other loans and debt BISBEH 2 B5) RSB E
securities issued) by total equity as at the respective year end.

(3)  Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year by  (3) EAELBERFIHIZFNEFBRUSERNEEBRET
the total assets as at the respective year end. "o
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(4)  Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the
total equity as at the respective year end.

(5)  Net profit margin is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the
turnover for the respective year.

(6)  Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income
in respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less our finance
costs, divided by the average of month-end gross loan receivables
balances of the corresponding loans during the year.

Current ratio

Our Group’s current ratio slightly increased from approximately
2.7 times as at 28 February 2018 to 3.0 times as at 28 February
2019, as the amount of other loans and loans from immediate
holding company decreased from approximately HK$291.6 million
and HK$126.0 million as at 28 February 2018 to approximately
HK$265.2 million and HK$94.0 million as at 28 February 2019
respectively.

Gearing ratio

Our Group's gearing ratio decreased from approximately 84.4%
as at 28 February 2018 to approximately 73.6% as at 28 February
2019, which was mainly due to the decrease in other loans and
loans from immediate holding company of approximately HK$26.4
million and HK$32 million respectively.

Return on total assets and return on equity

Our return on total assets slightly increased from approximately
6.9% in FY2018 to 7.0% in FY2019. Our return on equity slightly
decreased from approximately 12.8% in FY2018 to 12.3% in
FY2019. No material change was noted as the Group’s overall
performance remained stable during FY2019.

Net profit margin

The Group recorded a slight decrease in the net profit margin
from approximately 46.4% in FY2018 to approximately 44.9% in
FY2019. This was mainly due to a higher concentration of first
mortgage in our mortgage loans during FY2019.

Net interest margin

The net interest margin decreased from approximately 13.1% in
FY2018 to approximately 12.4% in FY2019. The decrease was
due to an increase in the percentage of first mortgage in our
mortgage loan portfolio from approximately 80.5% in FY2018 to
approximately 86.5% in FY2019.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 28 February 2019, our Group had a total of 50 staff
(28 February 2018: 52). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) were approximately HK$29.3 million for FY2019
(FY2018: approximately HK$28.0 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to market conditions and the
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee. Bonus based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions.
Other benefits include a share option scheme and contributions
to statutory mandatory provident fund scheme to our Group’s
employees in Hong Kong.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Our Group did not engage in any material acquisition or disposal
during FY2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have
any present plans for material investments and capital assets.

BEMEEERBRERAR
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PROSPECTS

In response to the fast-paced development of financial technology,
the Group will actively explore the possibility of developing
online pawn loan service. The pawnshop business has been fully
computerized since 2011, which facilitates better internal control and
provides a solid foundation for online pawn loan business. In Europe
and the United States (“U.S."), well-established and reputable online
pawnshops have developed mature operating mechanisms to meet
the short-term financial needs of customers in a discreet, simple
and efficient manner. It is believed that online pawnshops will be
attractive for the new generation, and will enable the Group to
promote its pawn loan business at a lower cost.

During the period under review, Hong Kong's financial market is
facing various risk factors that cast uncertainties over its future
development. The Group will keep an eye on the on-going trade
conflict between U.S. and China and its potential impact on the
Hong Kong property market. Whilst the Group strives to sustain
its business growth, the management will continue to run the
business in a prudent manner through enhancing risk control to
cope with the possible economic fluctuations. The Group will
continue to adopt a cautious approach when granting loans, such
as increasing the proportion of first mortgage loans and high net-
worth customers, as well as tightening the loan-to-value ratio.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Board has pleasure in submitting this report of the Directors
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 28 February 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing secured financing business in
Hong Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage loans.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2019 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 67 to 160 of this
annual report.

CASH FLOW POSITION

The cash flow position of the Group for the year ended 28
February 2019 is set out and analysed in the consolidated cash
flow statement set out on pages 71 to 72 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

At our Board meeting held on 28 May 2019, our Directors decided
to recommend the payment of final dividend of HK$0.73 cents
per share for FY2019. Taking into account the interim dividend
of HK$0.83 cents per share and the final dividends of HK$0.73
cents per share declared and paid during FY2019, the Company
has paid 30.1% of the profit attributable to the shareholders of
FY2019 as dividend to the Shareholders.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the identity of our Shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with our Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at 2103B,
21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no later than
4:30p.m. on Tuesday, 23 July 2019. The register of members of
our Company will be closed from Wednesday, 24 July 2019 to
Monday, 29 July 2019, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on pages 6 to 9 of this
annual report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$100.8
million (2018: HK$100.9 million) has been transferred to reserves.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 28 February 2019, the aggregate amount of the distributable
reserves of the Company was approximately HK$142.3 million
(2018: approximately HK$208.5 million).

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
24 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of property, plant and equipment of the
Group for the year ended 28 February 2019 are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in Company’s share capital for the year
ended 28 February 2019 are set out in note 24(a) to the financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder on 19 February 2013 (the “Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive
to them to promote the success of the business of the Group.
The Board may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme to any employee (full-time and part-time),
consultant, adviser, Director (including executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive Director), Substantial Shareholder
(as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)), distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider
of any member of the Group whom the Board determines have
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

As at 28 February 2019, being the end of FY2019 for the Group:

) a total of 40,000,000 options to subscribe for shares
were available for issue under the Share Option Scheme,
representing approximately 2.1% of the total issued shares
of the Company as at 28 February 2019;

i) an option granted under the Share Option Scheme may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof;
and

i) the Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 18
February 2023.
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Report of the Directors

The aggregate number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. No option
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit
being exceeded.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
as from the Adoption Date (excluding, for this purpose, shares
of the Company issuable upon exercise of options which have
been granted but which have lapsed in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all shares of
the Company in issue upon 12 March 2013 (the “Listing Date")
(i.e. 40,000,000 shares). The limit of 10% may be refreshed at
any time by approval of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting provided that the total number of the shares of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, the maximum number of shares underlying the options
granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1.0%
of the shares of the Company in issue for the time being.

A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on the exercise of an
option at the price determined by the Board provided that it shall
be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an option is offered to a participant, which
must be a business date (the “Offer Date”); (b) the average of
the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value
of a share of the Company on the Offer Date.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 18 February 2023.

As at the date of this annual report, no options had been granted
or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 28 February
2019 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Chart Man

Ms. Chan Mei Fong

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam On Tai
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
Dr. Yip Ngai

Pursuant to Article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”) and code provision A.4.2
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation at
the annual general meeting of the Company and will be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, Mr Chan Kai Kow Macksion and Mr. Lam On Tai will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors standing for re-election at the AGM are
set out in the circular sent to the shareholders of the Company
together with this annual report.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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ETERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERENBRORIEERGOZERZER

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 28 February 2019, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following persons other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

“SFO"):

NN
RE

RZE-—NF_A-+NHBH BEFRHKARREBT
BRABFTAD  san AR B RIEE S RS K0 ([# 3%
REIB%RA]) E336KETFE 2 ELMATREEE: - A
TAL (BEZFZARAEZITHABRIN) RARQF
B R ARBEI D P B TUA R

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares (Note 2)
BABRBES L
REEMRE,/ 1% H1n LEREA (Hizt2)
Kwan Lik Holding Limited Beneficial interest 1,295,823,024 66.85%
(Note 1) (M1t 1) ey
Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited (Note 1) (f#i#1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,295,823,024 66.85%
REEEE 2 B
TMF (Cayman) Limited (Note 1) (#z£1) Trustee 1,295,823,024 66.85%
(Note 3) (Hfzt3) ZiEA
Ms. Chan Nga Yu (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,295,823,024 66.85%
BRI+ (HaE3) BEEEER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
it A SFRA 2 i
Ms. Chan Kit Yu (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,295,823,024 66.85%
2w+ (Hi3) BEEEER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
it A SFRA 2 i
Ms. Mui Hang Sin (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,295,823,024 66.85%
BBt (faE3) BEEEER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
it A SFRA 2 i
Great Roc Capital Limited (Note 4) ({/i#4)  Beneficial interest 235,042,029 12.13%
Baksn
Mr. Yan Kam Cheong (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 235,042,029 12.13%
RIS KL (Hit4) REEEE 2 B
Beneficial interest 4,112,000 0.21%

B
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Notes:

1. The 1,295,823,024 shares is held by Kwan Lik Holding Limited,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TMF (Cayman) Limited.

2. There were 1,938,468,406 shares of the Company in issue as at 28
February 2019.

3. These 1,295,823,024 shares were owned by a discretionary trust
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga Yu,
Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr,
Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr.
Chan Kai Kow Macksion are the discretionary beneficiaries of the
trust.

4. Great Roc Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Yan Kam Cheong
who is the substantial Shareholder of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 28 February 2019, there was no
other person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of
the Company, other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company as having an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 28 February 2019, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, are set out below:
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1. Kwan Lik Holding Limited#%7%1,295,823,024 % %15 °
Kwan Lik Holding Limited/&Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited
ZEEMBAG - mKwan Lik (BVI) Limited] ATMF
(Cayman) Limitedz 2 & MEBAF]

2. RZZE—AEF_A-_+N B AQ2FB BT
1,938,468,406A% %17 °

3. —IEMIBEFEEEZS1,295,823,024/ 0% % %55
2 ZFEABTMF (Cayman) Limited » ERZ %A Kwan
Lik Holding Limitedz 2302 BT A « FRAEH 20 1
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Interest in the shares of the Company

ETERE

RAEQ TR 2

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 2)
BMABRKRE S
EoE Y HEmE TRRER (KriE2)
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,295,823,024 66.85%
FREAZ L (MYt 1) BIE R
Beneficial interest 53,477,564 2.76%
EnEn
Mr. Chan Chart Man (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,295,823,024 66.85%
BREE S E (BYaET) BiEETER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
g A RFARE 2R
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,295,823,024 66.85%
PES L L (K1) 5 ErEEm
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
Hifh A HFRFA 2w
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,295,823,024 66.85%
PRI AT (A1) BIEEEER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.76%
it A HERA 2=
Notes: P RE
1. These 1,295,823,024 shares were owned by a discretionary trust 1. —IBWE ST A %551,295,823,024 % 1319 o Z{=5E

whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga Yu,
Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr.
Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr.
Chan Kai Kow Macksion are the discretionary beneficiaries of the
trust.

2. There were 1,938,468,406 shares of the Company in issue as at 28
February 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or were required pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

2S5 ABTMF (Cayman) Limited » EFE# # 5B Kwan
Lik Holding Limitedz 2 &8 B TARA o R AR 20 +
BRRE &+ - AL+ BREGR A - BREESUe A
PREFN 2+ BRERmZ T RRECKT A BZIETZE

BEHA -

2. RZE—NF_AZ+NH KQRFRB T
1,938,468,406% f% 17 °

B EXFREEEN RZE-NAF_A-+N\B &
ERARBEBITRABRBES B 2BEABRER
AR RAEEBEE (E8RES LKA ERHIFEXV
#B) 2 B - AR MMESFTHERER TR
RPIEXVERE 7R EBD MAME AR A MBI R Z
EfEs AR (BRREES MR ERDIA R FRX
BEREFELRER/BEEZEGERR)  IREBEEFK
HAE 515 56 352 1R B AL IR FT 8 B e it A 2 (AT
BRORR  IRBLTRAERETESRR G IFE
STRIZE R & AR A KB 2 P 2 (R e A e SRR
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 28
February 2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was a
party and in which any director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

During the year under review, no Directors have interests in any
business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to
compete with the business of the Group.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorisation of the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting each year. The remuneration of the
executive Directors is subject to review by the remuneration
committee, and their remuneration is determined with reference
including but not limited to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors.
As for the non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors, their remuneration is determined by the
Board upon recommendation from the remuneration committee.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 9
and the five highest paid individuals are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
service agreements.

BEMEEEERARAF
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Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the letters of
appointment.

Saved as disclosed herein, no Director proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with members of the Group
that is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During FY2019, the Company repurchased a total of 149,728,000
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at the aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$50.4 million (before expenses).
All the repurchased shares were cancelled during FY2019.

Particulars of the repurchases are as follows:

ETERE

BHRATESRBIULIFATEF D BARAF LRT
T RU=F ERESHEBEN BEERBZRAEEZ
R T IARE LR IE

BRAEAREEN  ERNRRAFAE LEREE
ZEFMEENEEN SRR ARE AR
—FARIEMBBERRE CRERERIN) 2R

BH o

BE -HELERRS
RZE—NFUBRFE AR2AANBAREY
50,400,000/ 7T ( Nk 5 S AT ) FABE 2 P8 B AN A &)

£ 3£149,728,0000% 810 - T BEEBEBRHEN=F
—NFYFRFENLH-

BRBEZFHBWMT

Number Aggregate

of shares Purchase price per share Consideration

Month B repurchased Highest Lowest (before expenses)

=)-1E BREEE e

RIDEE BS RIE (HNBRBAZAT)

(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

(&) (&) (&)

March 2018 —ET-NF=H 62,232,000 0.345 0.315 21,421,560.00

April 2018 —E-\FMA 2,104,000 0.345 0.330 716,320.00

May 2018 —E-N\FHA 30,000,000 0.345 0.335 10,217,120.00

June 2018 —E-N\FRA 25,000,000 0.335 0.325 8,186,480.00

July 2018 —E-N\FtAH 9,544,000 0.330 0.315 3,055,120.00

August 2018 —ZE-NFENA 7,688,000 0.330 0.305 2,439,520.00

September 2018 —ZE-NFNA 5,440,000 0.335 0.320 1,759,160.00

October 2018 —ZE—-\F+A 6,064,000 0.335 0.325 2,027,440.00

November 2018 —E-N\F+—A 1,656,000 0.335 0.325 544,000.00
Total HREt

149,728,000

The above share repurchases were made with a view to stabilizing
the price per share of the Company, as the management of the
Company considered that the market price of the share might not
be able to truly reflect the value of the Company’s shares and the
Company'’s prospects.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
securities during FY2019.

50,366,720.00
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The information in respect of the revenue from rendering of
services attributable to the major customers of the Group during
the financial year is as follows:

BRBERE

AR R4 TR AN A S B 2 BB R D19 TR B RS
DEBERRERE ZHREL AR HSR2BERR
92 M 5EHE BRI -

FEER
RAMBEE - B BAREEBEF (5 IR RG A
BRI

2019

—E-hEF

The largest customer BAEF 8.3%
Five largest customers in aggregate RAREF B 19.2%

At no time during the year ended 28 February 2019 had the Directors,
their associates or any shareholder of the Company (to the best of the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in these major customers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at 28 May 2019,
the Company maintains the prescribed percentage of public float
under the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Kwan Lik Holding Limited, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan
Chart Man, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Nga
Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin entered into a deed
of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-competition”) in favour
of the Company on 21 February 2013 pursuant to which they
have undertaken to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of
its subsidiaries) that it or he or she would not, and would procure
that its or his or her associates (other than any member of our
Group) would not, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate or be
interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether
as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee or
otherwise) any business which is or may be in competition with
the current businesses of the Group during the restricted period.

Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, Mr. Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu
and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion are the beneficiaries of a discretionary
trust whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued ‘share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the
parties to the Deed of Non-competition on compliance with each
of their respective undertaking thereunder.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by the parties to
the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that the Deed of
Non-competition is fully complied with and duly enforced during
the year ended 28 February 2019 and up to the date of this
report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions of the Group constituted continuing
connected transactions (the "Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the Group for the year ended 28 February
2019:

Tenancy agreements

(i)  On 7 June 2018, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Hing Wah
HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Hing Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Limited
("Kwan Chart Holding”), which is owned as to 90% and
10% by Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive Director and
by his spouse, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, respectively. Pursuant to the Hing Wah
Tenancy Agreement, Kwan Chart Holding shall lease a
premises to Hing Wah HK for a term of two years from 8
June 2018 to 7 June 2020 at a monthly rent of HK$80,000.

(i)  On 7 June 2018, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Wai Wah
HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Wai Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive
Director. Pursuant to the Wai Wah Tenancy Agreement, Mr.
Chan Chart Man shall lease a premises to Wai Wah HK for
a term of two years from 8 June 2018 to 7 June 2020 at a
monthly rent of HK$90,000.

(iii)  On 7 June 2018, for the purpose of operating our head
office, Oi Wah HK entered into a tenancy agreement (“Oi
Wah Tenancy Agreement”) with Kwan Chart Estate
Company Limited (“Kwan Chart Estate”), which is owned
as to 95% and 5% by Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive
Director and by his spouse, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, respectively. Pursuant to the
Oi Wah Tenancy Agreement, Kwan Chart Estate shall lease a
premises to Oi Wah HK for a term of two years from 31 May
2018 to 30 May 2020 at a monthly rent of HK$55,000.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Annual review of the Continuing Connected Transactions

Although all the Continuing Connected Transactions are fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules,
these transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors who have confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to (or from) independent third parties; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related party transactions
that did not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules made during the year were disclosed in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate Directors’ liability insurance has been arranged to
indemnify the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The coverage and the sum insured under the policy are
reviewed annually. Further, the Company’s Articles of Association
provide that Directors are entitled to be indemnified out of the
Company’s assets against claims from third parties in respect of
certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance
cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 11
to 19 under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report, which forms part of this report of
the Directors.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by
KPMG, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

By order of the Board

Chan Kai Ho Edward
Chairman

Hong Kong,
28 May 2019

Report of the Directors
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EERERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Stock
Exchange with effect from the Listing Date. The Company is
committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its business and the Shareholders. The Company has adopted
the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasise a quality board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 28 February 2019 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions, except Code Provision A.2.1 which requires the roles
of the chairman and the chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, an executive Director, currently holds both positions. Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of the
Group, who has been primarily involved in formulation of business
strategies and determination of the overall direction of the Group.
He has also been chiefly responsible for the Group's operations
as he directly supervises other executive Directors and senior
management of the Group. Taking into account the continuation
of the implementation of the Group's business plans, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the best candidate for both positions
and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

In addition, to demonstrate the Company’s continued commitment
to high standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a
board diversity policy in September 2013 to comply with a new
Code Provisions on board diversity. With the adoption of our
board diversity policy, the Company has expanded the duty scope
of the Nomination Committee to include the monitoring of the
implementation of the policy.

The Directors will review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and compliance with the Code Provisions from time to
time.

34 Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR

TEERER

ApmEfiy 8 £ B HERE R L - ARBEH A
EHRERNEEEBIERBERERLZEKF
TEER - ARTCDHEAEN EHRAME+HzR
EEORSTRIPTE 2 T RIGR (TFRIMERX] ) - AnF]
ZEEEARINZERERZERTE AUZANAE
B ARBEBRRAERENMEE -

BE_Z-NF-_A-tTN\BLFEMBERFHA
Hb - ARE)—BEETTRIEX T RMEXEA 2.1
RERSN  ZENRETERITREAH . AERER
7 BEFEHR-ALRE-BATEZRMERELER
R EZ M AR - REREE - ERALNEEZEE
BEAN FREAHFAREZEZHRERETAE
BZEESH  ARREREERMAITEZT AR
EERERE WRTA-ERAREZESEEAR
AN ZRBEBRAKREXRGHEZEEE EF (B
RELIFRTES)RR REAR AL RZME R
ZRENE MRTLRFERRFMERERER

WHFEWEF 2 EEMa -

BN BRARRREER NIRRT ZEEESE
BN T =ZFNARMNESTEXNEZ TR
R ABTEREFTEREZ L2 TANGX -
RIRNEEEXNEZTTCEER  ARFEHERREE
BEgvRESE UBREEBRRZHT-

EERBTRRNARRZEXERRRLEE T TR
32 1B



Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board, led by the chairman of the Company, is responsible
for leadership and control of the Company and overseeing the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The
Board has delegated to the senior management of the Company
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

The Board reserved its decision for all major matters of the
Company, including: approving and monitoring all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to
the management. The Board delegated various responsibilities to
the senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating day-to-day operation and management of the
Company in accordance with the management strategies and
plans approved by the Board, formulating and monitoring the
operation and production plans and budgets, and supervising and
monitoring the control systems.
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EEERRE

For the year ended 28 February 2019, the Board held four formal
meetings. Attendance of individual Directors at the Board meeting
for the year ended 28 February 2019 is as follows:

BE_Z-NF_A-TN\HILEFE EF2817
MAEREZH - BE_ZT-NF_A-+N\RILF
B EREEHFEEEER BERMT

Board Meeting

Annual General Meeting

Name of Director EEfZ EEA - BRRBEAE
Executive Directors: HiTEE -
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Note 1) BRI (BfatT)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFITEARZE) 4/4 11
Mr. Chan Chart Man (Note 1) BRSE SUSE (MaET) 4/4 171
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) BRIEm L (HaLT) 4/4 171
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) MRSt (A1) 4/4 1
Non-executive Director: FHTESE -

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (Note 1) BRESER S (MaET) 4/4 171
Independent non-executive Directors: BUINTEE:

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert 2K EL 4/4 11
Dr. Yip Ngai ERET 4/4 1/1
Mr. Lam On Tai METE 4 4/4 11
Note: et

1. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong
and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion are siblings. Mr. Chan Chart Man
is their father.

For the year ended 28 February 2019, apart from the meetings
of the Board, consent/approval from the Board had also been
obtained by written resolutions on a number of matters.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 June
2012. For the year ended 28 February 2019, one general meeting
of the Company was held.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director, currently holds
both the positions of chairman and chief executive officer. Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of the
Group, who has been primarily involved in formulation of business
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strategies and determination of the overall direction of the Group.
He has also been chiefly responsible for the Group’s operations
as he directly supervises other executive Directors and senior
management of the Group. Taking into account the continuation
of the implementation of the Group’s business plans, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the best candidate for both positions
and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Board Composition

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including four
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. The current composition of
the Board is as follows:

TEERRE
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Membership of Board Committee(s)
E=ZEEHE

Executive Directors:

HITEF

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
PREAR ST (FmFTEAAEL)

Mr. Chan Chart Man
BREE X e 4

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
PREH L+

Ms. Chan Mei Fong
BRIEF L+

Non-executive Director:
FEHITESE -

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
FREAERSE A&

Independent non-executive Directors:
B HBITEE -

Mr. Lam On Tai

MEZIREE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
ZIKEE LT

Dr. Yip Ngai
EREL

Member of Remuneration Committee
HHMEZBEENE
Member of Nomination Committee

RAZEEKE

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

FNEZEEEE

Member of Audit Committee
EZLBEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee
REEBEKE

Chairman of Nomination Committee
RAEEEEEE

Member of Audit Committee
EZLBEEKE

Member of Remuneration Committee
HMEZEBEEXE

Chairman of Audit Committee
BEREEEEE
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EERERE

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have
such number of independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board, and at least one of whom must
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
was admitted as an associate of The Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants (currently known as Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants) in February 1987 and became
an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently
known as HKICPA) in September 1988.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
the independence of all the independent non-executive Directors
and considered that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 54 to 57
of this annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 54 to 57 of
this annual report, the Board members do not have any family,
financial or business relationship with each other.

The list of Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange, and is disclosed
in all corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, and each of the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Such term is for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date and is subject to
the re-appointment of each of the Directors by the Company at
an annual general meeting upon retirement.

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that any
Director appointed by the Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall be subject to re-election at
such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.
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In addition, every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. At every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
according to Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Responsibilities of Directors

All the Directors received an induction on appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operation
of the Group and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. The Directors will also be updated from time to
time on the business development and operation plans of the
Company.

In compliance with Code Provision A.6.5, the Company will
arrange for, and provide funds for, all the Directors to participate
in continuous professional development organised in the form of
in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep
them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of the
Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge on
the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.

Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, a non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. Our
non-executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
letters of appointment.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard set out in Appendix 10
(Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers) (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules, in relation to
the dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, each Director
has confirmed that he/she has complied with the standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 28 February 2019
and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
With the adoption of the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to comply with the Code Provisions, the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on 23
May 2014. According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board
should be composed of directors with diversed skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background or professional
experience. The Board will review such measurable objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and assess the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee considered the Board composition was in compliance
with the Board Diversity Policy.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board and senior management. The existing
members of the Nomination Committee include Dr. Leung Shiu Ki
Albert and Mr. Lam On Tai, both are independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director.
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the reporting
year. During the meeting, the Nomination Committee proposed
to the Board to re-elect retiring Directors and re-appointed Mr.
Chan Chart Man as executive Director, Ms. Chan Mei Fong as
executive Director and Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert as independent
non-executive Director. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
composition of the Board. Please refer to the table below for the
attendance record of the meetings of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 28 February 2019:
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Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
PIEIE L (FEEZE2EE) 11
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
PRE S A& 1/1
Mr. Lam On Tai
(UNE o 1/1
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which specifies the procedures, process and criteria of
the nomination of Directors.

Selection criteria for nomination and appointment of
Directors

When making any recommendations in relation to the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider, but without limitation, the
following factors when evaluating the suitability of the proposed
candidate:

° competence, experience, skills, expertise, education and
professional qualifications, background and other personal
attributes of the candidate that can best complement and
expand the skill set and expertise of the Board as a whole;

o reputation for integrity;

° availability of the candidate, as to whether the candidate
can devote sufficient time and effort to properly discharge
his duties as a Director; and

. other factors as the Nomination Committee or the Board
may deem relevant.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive director, he or she must comply with the
independence requirements under the Listing Rules. Such
candidate shall be independent in judgment and character, and
shall be able to act in the best interests of the Shareholders.

Nomination procedure and process

The Nomination Policy sets out the procedure and process in
relation to the nomination of Directors as follows:

. members of the Nomination Committee or the Board shall
identify, nominate and invite suitable candidates;

o the Nomination Committee shall determine the suitable
candidate for appointment in accordance with the selection
criteria set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy;

o in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors,
the Nomination Committee shall review and evaluate the
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EERERE

candidate’s overall performance and contributions, and
make recommendations to the Board and/or Shareholders
for consideration in respect of his/her re-election in general
meetings; and

o for any individual that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a director in the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall evaluate such candidate with reference to the criteria
stipulated above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Policy is subject to review by the Board from
time to time to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with good
corporate governance practice and regulatory requirements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management, determine on behalf
of the Board specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for the Directors and senior management, assess
performance of the executive Directors and approve the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts. The existing members of the
Remuneration Committee include Mr. Lam On Tai and Dr. Leung
Shiu Ki Albert, both are independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director. Mr. Lam On Tai is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are

available on the website of the Company and the website of the
Stock Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
reporting year. During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the Directors’ salaries and other allowances and the
remuneration of the senior management and assessment system.
Please refer to the table below for the attendance record of the
meeting of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended
28 February 2019:

EEERRE

FMEEENBREFENGRIT— u\au% %ﬁ%@é\
ERELENESTHFMREMERARSREEES
e Z AL HIE T%%@W%%BA@%\E_? hi:ﬂ
“HNBLEFEREHEFHEZES SR 2

Directors

E=

Attendance/
Number of Meeting held
HEBIERRE

Mr. Lam On Tai (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

ML REE (FNEEEF/E)
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward

= ES
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert

RICEE L

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Code Provisions, the

11
11

11

EREEEKEREEE D 2 H M

RIBTFREXEB ISR SREBEXE (FHM[E

remuneration of the members of the senior management (as FhSREERE| —HMEL) HE-_T-AF_HA
described under the section “Directors and Senior Management”) =+ /\RIFFERBEEH 2 HEETI0T
by band for the year ended 28 February 2019 is set out as
follows:
Number of
individuals
Remuneration band FrifenE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001, 7% 1,500,000 7T 2
Audit Committee EREE®
The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 19 ARARZEZEEE@N —_E—=F—-A+LHEKT

February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, amongst other
things, to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
the internal control systems of the Group. The existing members
of the Audit Committee comprise Dr. Yip Ngai, Dr. Leung Shiu Ki
Albert and Mr. Lam On Tai, all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. Dr. Yip Ngai is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

B AR AR WARE R RIS RT R E & E B
REHE - %’f??,\EZIEH&fi%(ﬁﬂP’E%Mﬁﬁ&
EEAKEZMBREBENABEERSE - BERZ
EeRAKEREEREL. %Mﬁ%iﬁﬁwiﬁ%
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EERERE

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the reporting
year. During these meetings, the Audit Committee confirmed the
appointment of KPMG and fixed its remuneration, and reviewed
the procedures of internal control of the Group. The Audit
Committee was of the view that the procedures of internal control
of the Group were effective. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the interim and annual results of the Group for the financial year
and the auditors’ report prepared by the external auditors in
relation to accounting matters and any material findings during

AERDHEZZBEREMH -

BEZER B S 2 MR E A] 1O )8 uh Ko B 32 P AR Uk
BRI

ERZEERBEFEANGRITMAGH EREER
ENe L ETESHEIMEBM I TERETHE

B YA ARBEZAREEREF BREZEERR
AEEANMEZEREFTZAER ERZEENERMA
SEAMBFERE 2 FRRFEESE  ARAINEZE
EFTAR LA B8 5T S E RN ZBUBIE P EMERER
ZIZBMEBE - BEREZBERRBRMBHRRLHRE
MAERSFTHRRFERRE W EIFHBHHE-
TRIJIEENBEZE_T-NF_A-+N\BLFE

the audit. The Audit Committee was of the opinion that such HEBZREECEH 208
financial statements and report complied with the applicable
accounting policy standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made. Please refer to the table below for
the attendance record of the meetings of the Audit Committee
during the year ended 28 February 2019:

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings held
BE=x HEBITERRE
Dr. Yip Ngai (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
EREL (FREEELE) 2/2
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
RS+ 212
Mr. Lam On Tai
ML TREE 212

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the
development and review of the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group and monitoring the compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, and reviewing the corporate governance
compliance with the Code Provisions and disclosure in the annual
report.

In order to comply with the requirements of the Code Provisions
A.6.5, all Directors participated in training in relation to continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contributions to the Board remains
informed. The Board has also reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices and this corporate governance report.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 28 February 2019 is summarised below:

TEERRE

BE-_T-NF-A-TNALEERE JSEFME
ZAERIE DR ER i an T -

Attending or participating in seminars/conferences/

Names of Directors

EEfA

corporate events or reading regulatory updates/
journals relating to director’s duties
HERSNHNEEF CEEFHR
MEFRESRECBENETENR BT

Executive Directors
HITEF

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
BREAZ A&

Mr. Chan Chart Man

PR SR ST A

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
FREE R 22+

Ms. Chan Mei Fong
BRIEFS &Lt
Non-executive Director
FEPNITEE

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion

BRRUERSEE

Independent non-executive Directors
BUIHITEE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert

RIEE L

Dr. Yip Ngai

EREL

Mr. Lam On Tai

ML TR FE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner
in accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the
timeframe stipulated in Rules 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 28 February
2019. Currently, the Company’s external auditors are KPMG (the
“Auditors”).

For the year ended 28 February 2019, the fees paid or payable by
the Company to the Auditors amounted to approximately HK$1.2
million, which was all for audit services.

The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 58 to 66 of .this annual
report.
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EERERE

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and sound enterprise risk management and internal control
system and through the Audit Committee and, if necessary, an
external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal control
services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these systems
at least annually, covering material controls, including financial,
operational, compliance and strategic risk control functions. The
Board understands that such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues identified to the Board.

During the year under review, the Company also appointed an
independent professional consultancy firm, Corporate Governance
Professionals Limited (“CCPL”, formerly known as “Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited”) to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by CCPL to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of CCPL as well as the comments of the Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk
management systems effective and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group reviewed its enterprise risk management framework
in FY2019. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversights risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

In the reporting year, the following principal risks of the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks,
financial risks and compliance risks.

TEERRE

FEBWERRARERER

AEER -_ZF-NFHBRFEENECXRREIEE
R-EZSERAAEREFRE2ARNAIEE
MEREERBERMERAREZERS  LEER
SEmERNRERR

REEBZBEBRBEAMTEBEEHRRAR 75 -
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BRABEZEE MESATHRIEREZES
HFRE o

TERMBE
RBEFE AEBHARIATIERR  E0ER
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Risk Areas Principal Risks

E R & E FERR

Compliance Risks Disclosure of sensitive customer’s information to the public
aBRERE MARBEGRELER

Operational Risks

SERR EmsRBRERP

Acceptance of high risk customers

Probability of loss arising from heavily lopsided exposure to a particular group of

mortgage loan customers

HHRNERBERERTFEBNEREE N TEEHMNEIE

Failure to detect unlawful properties due to procedural errors, fraud and misconduct
committed by employees or third parties

BRFFiER  EEXFE =D EFERITATEREALIDEVE

Entering into contracts that are unfavourable to the Company due to the human errors

made in draft of the loan contract

EREEEFRENTFOABBREYF LHARB TS L

Financial Risks

3% LB

No significant risk identified
RS PN

Strategic Risk
SRS B

No significant risk identified
WESREARR
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EERERE

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three-layer” corporate governance
structure with operational management and controls performed
by operations management, coupled with risk management
monitoring carried out by the finance team and independent
internal audit outsourced to and conducted by CCPL. The Group
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major risks
of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of
occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register
is updated by management as the risk owners with addition of
new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least
annually, after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This
review process can ensure that the Group proactively manages
the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk related parties have
access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to those
risks in their area of responsibility so that they can take follow-up
action in an efficient manner.

The Group's risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management framework will be evaluated at least
annually, and periodic management meeting is held to update the
progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management is committed
to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily business
operation processes in order to align risk management with
corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more cost
effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform
internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"). The internal
control mechanism includes information flow and reporting
processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures, and
staff training arrangements, etc.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and policies
of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls operating
and financial performance and sets appropriate policies for risk
management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The
Board delegates the implementation of strategies and day-to-day
operation of the Group to the management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang, the company secretary appointed by the
Board and an employee of the Company, in the opinion of the
Board, possesses the necessary qualification and experience, and is
capable of performing the functions of the company secretary. The
Company will provide fund for Mr. Cheng to take not less than 15
hours of appropriate professional training in each financial year as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy, in circumstances that the
Group is profitable and without affecting the normal operations
and business of the Group, the Company may consider declaring
and paying dividends to its shareholders.

When considering whether to declare any dividends and
determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, inter alia, the following factors: (i) the financial
position of the Group; (ii) the capital and debt level of the Group;
(iii) the general market conditions; (iv) any cash requirements for
any future development plans of the Group; (v) any restrictions on
dividend payouts imposed by any of the Group’s lenders; and (vi)
any other relevant factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The payment of the dividends by the Company will also be subject
to any restrictions imposed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands as well as the articles of association of the Company.

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the
Shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will from time to time
review the dividend policy and may exercise at its absolute and
sole discretion to update, amend, and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time as the Board deems fit and necessary. There is
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any specific reporting period.
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EEERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear,
timely and effective communication with the Shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Board also recognises that
effective communication with the Company’s investors is critical
in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree
of transparency to ensure the Shareholders and the investors
of the Company will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group through the publication of
annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
Company also publishes all corporate communications on the
website of the Company.

In respect of each matter to be considered at the annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings, including the re-
election of Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the
Chairman.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member of
the relevant committee or an appointed representative, will attend
the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer questions of
Shareholders.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Company will invite
representatives of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

Shareholders’ Rights

1. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
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of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment
of dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited:

Address: 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point
Hong Kong
Email: srinfo.hk@boardroomlimited.com
Tel: (852) 21531688
Fax: (852) 30205058

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of the Company
at the following designated contact, correspondence address,
email address and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Attention: Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang
(Company Secretary)

Address: Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower,
No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email: brian.cheng@oiwah.com.hk

Tel: (852) 28332002

Fax: (852) 28919831

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

(i)  Proposal for election of a person other than a Director
as a Director:
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association,
a Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting should lodge (i) notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director; and (ii) notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected, at either (a) the
head office of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms
2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, or (b) the registration office
of the Company in Hong Kong at 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong. The period

3.
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(ii)

for lodgment of the notices mentioned above will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days.

Other proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may
lodge a written request, duly signed, at the head office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 2302-2303,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong marked for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her request
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar and upon confirmation by the share registrar
that the request is proper and in order, and is made
by a Shareholder, the Board will in its sole discretion
decide whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the
notice of meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders
for consideration of the Proposal raised by the
Shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting of the Company.

(2) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of a special
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.

(3) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of an ordinary
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.
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Constitutional Documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Shareholders passed on 19
February 2013, the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company were adopted with effect
from the Listing Date. Save as disclosed above, during the year
ended 28 February 2019, there was no significant change in the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

The Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
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Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (BREXZ), aged 47, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is also a director
of all the subsidiaries within the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group in
2000 and is responsible for our Group’s overall management,
strategic planning and business development. He has over 18
years of experience in business management and pawn loan
business. Mr. Chan is currently the chairman of The Hong Kong
and Kowloon Pawnbrokers’ Association Limited (B if¥mehs
fRA7]) and honorary chairman of Macau General Chamber of
Pawnbrokers (EFIEZEER ). Mr. Chan has been the vice-
president of Hong Kong Property Finance Association Limited
since March 2014. Mr. Chan obtained a degree of Bachelor of
Engineering in Civil Engineering from the City University, London,
United Kingdom in July 1994. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan
Chart Man and the brother of Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan
Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are our
Directors.

Mr. Chan Chart Man (BR%X), aged 88, is our founder and
executive Director. He is also a director of each of Oi Wah Holding
Limited ("Oi Wah Holding"”), Oi Wah HK, Wai Wah HK and Hing
Wah HK. Mr. Chan is responsible for advising on overall strategic
planning and business development of our Group. Mr. Chan
established the business of our Group in 1975 and has played
a significant role in the growth of our business. He has over 43
years of experience in finance and pawn loan business. Mr. Chan
is the father of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms.
Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are
our Directors.

Ms. Chan Mei Fong (FR3£35), aged 49, is our executive Director
and chief operating officer. Ms Chan is also a director of Oi
Wah HK, Oi Wah Holding, Oi Wah Enterprises Limited ("Oi
Wah Enterprises”), Oi Wah Property Credit Limited (“Oi Wah
Property”), Oi Wah Finance Limited (“Oi Wah Finance”), Oi
Wah Credit Limited (“Oi Wah Credit”), Oi Wah Mortgage Limited
("Oi Wah Mortgage”) and Oi Wah Pawnshop Limited ("“Oi
Wah Pawnshop”). Ms. Chan joined our Group in 2007 and is
responsible for the overall operations of our Group’s business. Ms.
Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Town and Country
Planning from the University of the West of England, Bristol,
United Kingdom in September 1996. Ms. Chan also obtained a
diploma in Gemmology and Gem Diamond diploma from The
Gemmological Association and Gem Testing Laboratory of Great
Britain in January 2006 and January 2007, respectively. Ms. Chan
is a fellow of The Gemmological Association of Great Britain. Ms.
Chan is the daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow
Macksion, all of whom are our Directors.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Chan Ying Yu (BRZHI), aged 53, is our executive Director.
She is also a director of Oi Wah HK, Oi Wah Holding, Oi Wah
Enterprises, Oi Wah Property, Oi Wah Credit, Oi Wah Finance,
Oi Wah Mortgage and Oi Wah Pawnshop and the authorised
representative of the Company. Ms. Chan joined our Group in
2000 and is responsible for overseeing our administration and
human resources matters. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Hotel and Restaurant Management from the
Middlesex University, United Kingdom in July 1995 and was
elected as an associate of the Hotel and Catering International
Management Association in October 1995. Ms. Chan is the
daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion,
all of whom are our Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (FRE(ZR), aged 63, was appointed
as our non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Mr. Chan is
a lawyer with 33 years of experience in general practice. He has
passed solicitor qualifying examinations in Hong Kong and was
admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in March
1984 and has been a partner in Chow C.L. & Macksion Chan
since 2001. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Pure
Mathematics from The University of Calgary, Canada in June 1978.
Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the brother of
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Ms. Chan Ying
Yu, all of whom are our Directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam On Tai (%% %), aged 47, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 1 April 2017. He has more
than 21 years of experience in banking and securities industry, in
which over 18 years of experience was accumulated in advising
on corporate finance relating to various listing and restructuring
transactions. Mr. Lam currently serves as the managing director of
Red Solar Capital Limited (42#B&ZABRAF]). Mr Lam received
his diploma in general business management from the Lingnan
College ((8FIE3F%) (now known as the Lingnan University (58
KE) in Hong Kong in November 1994, and his master’s degree
in business administration from the University of Sheffield in
the United Kingdom in December 1996. He also obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in laws from the University of Wolverhampton
in the United Kingdom in July 1998 through a distance learning
course. Mr. Lam served as a non-executive director of Jiyi
Household International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 1495) from June 2015 to November 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (¥k#), aged 70, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2013.
Dr. Leung was served as the company secretary of Union Medical
Healthcare Limited which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 2138) until September 2016. Dr. Leung
was also served as an independent non-executive director of Nga
Chun Holdings Company Limited and Skyway Securities Group
Limited, which are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1462 and 1141) until February 2016 and
November 2015 respectively. Dr. Leung was also served as an
independent non-executive director of Ruifeng Petroleum Chemical
Holdings Ltd, which is listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 8096) until October 2015. Dr. Leung was also an
assistant vice president in Citicorp International Limited from 1987
to 1992. Dr. Leung was admitted as an associate of The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants (now known as Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants) in February 1987 and became
an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now
known as HKICPA) in September 1988. Dr. Leung obtained a
Doctorate degree of Philosophy in Economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in September 2007, a Master
degree of Business Administration from Brunel University, United
Kingdom in December 1985 and a Diploma in Management
Studies from The Polytechnic of Central London, United Kingdom
in October 1983.

Dr. Yip Ngai (¥%), aged 45, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Dr. Yip is a
jewellery appraiser and valuation expert and has over 25 years of
experience in jewellery and art industry. Dr. Yip became a fellow
of the HKICPA in May 2012. He has also been appointed as a
specialist by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
& Vocational Qualifications since July 2011 and as a technical
advisor (watch and jewellery) by the Employees Retraining Board
since September 2013. Dr. Yip obtained a Doctorate degree of
business administration from the EU Business School in May 2011,
a Master degree of Business Administration from the Federation
University Australia in December 2008 and a Bachelor of Business
(Accounting) degree from the Monash University, Australia in
November 1999. Dr. Yip obtained a diploma in Gemmology from
The Gemmological Association and Gem Testing Laboratory of
Great Britain in October 1994.

56 Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR

REEEL 705 RZE—=F-_ATNABEZE
RAEEBIIFNITES - RELTZ AWM ER
EFTRARIEAERBREEBRERAR (RMHMKK:
2138) 2 RAIME HEE_T—R"FNALL -2 H
THEREEREERERAFRRNIEESEER
RAF (HRERZMERLET (RORSE: 1462 %
M41) ) ZBUFRTES  DRIEE-T—R"F=
AR —AET+— Al - RELTHEEFRE
LIERER AR (RBERZFGEM LT (RMHMRIE
8096) )2 BUNITESE BEE-T—HETA
e RELRER—NANEFE-NNZFEETE
EERER AR ZHEBERIEHE - RETR—ANE
F_AREMNRETFAREGHMAEEE IR
—NWNA\NFNLAKAEAGFHMIAEEE - BB L
R-ZZEZELFNANGLEMRREBRERE I KES
HEHLEM R—AN\AFTARNSERME
NI AZ (Brunel University)J83 v TRy B IRE L&
UER—NAN=ZF+TARGERRAPRIZITEN
(The Polytechnic of Central London)/E% 2 &8 &
& e

EREL A5 RN T =ZF_A+NBEZT
ABASEBUIFNTES -ERLTAKEETAKL
HEER RHKELRBINITEREBBB2F2L
BoEBEAIN T —ERAKABAGHIAS
MEFEE BB _T——FLAEEZTAT
BEIMMB¥XEFRTER 2 ERAA-E—=F
NAREZTAREEBEIIRERMKE X
BEE -EELIR _T——FH ANBEMNEER
(EU Business School)## v TRERIE L2
RZZTT)\F+ = AEUS RN F K2 (Federation
University Australia)i8% 2 T8 IR8E T 247 -
UER—AANAF+—ADRBRNEHHKE
(Monash University)i88 2 B2 (€5F) 2L 847 -
ERIR - NANAENFFARGARNELS2HeNE
ARAEREREZERSR-



Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (¥5#8#), aged 36, is our chief financial
officer and company secretary. He joined our Group in June 2012
and is responsible for overseeing the financial, accounting and
secretarial affairs of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Cheng worked at KPMG from 2006 to 2012 and his last position
was assistant manager. Mr. Cheng was registered as a certified
public accountant and a certified public accountant (practising) of
the HKICPA in January 2010 and September 2012, respectively.
Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2006.

Mr. Ng Kai Man ({fEX), aged 58, is our marketing director
and is responsible for managing and operating our property
mortgage department. Mr. Ng joined our Group in 2013. His main
duties are strengthening customer relationships by scheduling
regular personal and company visits in Hong Kong in order to
explore new business opportunities with potential customers. Prior
to joining our Group, he had been working in Wing Lung Bank
since 1988 and was promoted to senior financial manager in
2010. Mr. Ng obtained a Diploma in marketing from Hong Kong
Productivity Council and Hong Kong Institute of Marketing in
1999 and a professional Diploma in marketing management from
Hong Kong Management Association in 1996 respectively. In 1999
he was elected full member of Hong Kong Institute of Marketing
and awarded as Professional Marketer (ProM) in 2001. He also
obtained an advanced professional Diploma in financial planning
from The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and
Continuing Education in 2006. In 2005, he has been admitted
as a Certified Professional Marketer (Asia) by Asia Marketing
Federation, which is @ member of World Marketing Federation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (Z#8#) is our company secretary.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheng are set out under the paragraph
headed “Senior Management” in this section.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 67 to 160, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
28 February 2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 28 February 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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BAZBERE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Impairment of mortgage loan receivables

Refer to notes 2(k)(i) and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

As at 28 February 2019, the Group’'s mortgage loan
receivables amounted to HKD 1,236 million, representing
85.7% of total assets, with total expected credit loss
("ECL") allowances of HKD 1 million recognised.

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9, Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9"”), which replaced Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments: recognition
and measurement with effect from 1 January 2018
(applicable to the Group since 1 March 2018), introduced
a more complex ECL model to assess loss allowances for
mortgage loan receivables measured at amortised cost.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
mortgage loan receivables included the following:

o understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls of financial reporting over the
approval, recording and monitoring of allowance for
ECL by performing walkthrough and test of controls;

o assessing the reliability of the ECL model used by
management in determining the loss allowances
with the assistance of our internal specialists, by
assessing the appropriateness of the key parameters
and estimates in the ECL model, including the
identification of loss stages, probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other
management adjustments;
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The Key Audit Matter

In order to adopt the new requirements, the Group has
developed a new model for measuring loss allowances
for mortgage loan receivables. Loan exposures that are
not already credit-impaired are classified as stage 1
on origination and a 12-month ECL is assessed. Loan
exposures will remain in stage 1 until they are repaid,
unless they experience a significant increase in credit risk
(stage 2) or they become credit-impaired (stage 3).

Loan exposures will transfer to stage 2 when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk compared to the
risk at origination. Loan exposures are classified as stage
3 when they become credit-impaired. A lifetime ECL is
assessed for loans classified under stage 2 or stage 3.

The determination of loss allowances using the ECL model
is subject to a number of key parameters and estimates,
including the identification of loss stages, estimates of
probability of default, loss given default, exposures at
default, adjustments for forward-looking information
and other adjustment factors. Management judgment
is involved in the selection of those parameters and the
making of these estimates.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

o assessing the completeness and accuracy of data
used for the key parameters in the ECL model, by
comparing individual loan information on a sample
basis with the underlying agreements and other
related documentation. For key parameters using
external data, we selected samples to inspect the
accuracy of such data by comparing them with
publicly available resources obtained independently;

o for key parameters involving forward looking
information, we critically assessed whether
management’s use of such information is reasonable
or supportable by comparing them to the Group’s
internal records including historical loss experience
and external sources obtained independently. We
also assessed the reasonableness of any revisions to
these key parameters by checking the consistency
against prior period and on transition to the new
accounting standard;
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The Key Audit Matter

Management also exercises judgement in determining the
guantum of loss given default based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the financial
situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount of
collateral, the seniority of the claim and the existence and
cooperativeness of other creditors. In particular, for real
estate mortgage loans, management refers to valuations
prepared by qualified third party valuers and considers
the significance of various factors, including the location
and use of the property when assessing the value of
real estate property held as collateral. The enforceability,
timing and means of realisation of collateral can also have
an impact on the recoverable amount of collateral and,
therefore, on the amount of loss allowances as at the end
of the reporting period.

The Group has retrospectively applied the impairment
allowances requirements and recognised any difference
between the original carrying amount and new carrying
amount at the applicable date of initial application (i.e.
1 March 2018) in the opening retained earnings or other
components of equity (“Transition adjustments”).

We identified the impairment of mortgage loan receivables
as a key audit matter because of the complexity of the
inherent uncertainty and management judgement involved
in determining loss allowances and because of their
significance to the financial results and the total assets of
the Group.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

o recalculating the amount of credit loss allowance
for 12-month and lifetime credit losses using the
ECL model based on the above parameters and
assumptions;

o critically assessing the forecast cash flows for credit-
impaired mortgage loan receivables by understanding
and challenging the viability of the Group’s recovery
plans and evaluating the timing and means of
realisation of collateral. We also evaluated the
consistency of management’s application of key
assumptions by comparing them with management’s
key assumptions adopted in the prior period; and

o obtaining journal entries relating to adjustments
made on transition to the new financial instruments
standard and comparing the original carrying
amounts and new carrying amounts of mortgage
loan receivables to assess if the journal entries
have been properly incorporated in the financial
statements;

o assessing whether the presentation and disclosures
on the loss allowances for mortgage loan receivables
meet the disclosure requirements in the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B LB R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent B4R Z B s 2B BEAEBAEH) s
auditor’s report is Hui Chuen Hoi as appearing on his Practising ({RiFHHREZEE) -

Certificate.

KPMG EFREHAMEKA
Certified Public Accountants HE R ETAD

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BERIR

10 Chater Road BT 1055

Central, Hong Kong RFRE8E

28 May 2019 —E-NFRA=ZTNH
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HAZERAE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA THIR )

Note 2019 2018
BiaE —E-hF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fr 7
Revenue I # 3 224,763 217,276
Interest income calculated using the REBRFEEAE 2 F S
effective interest method WA 166,498 211,169
Interest income from pawn loan BAFEFG ABZE 2B
receivables at FVPL HFE B A B A 51,351 -
Gain on disposal of repossessed assets &S & B & E 2 Was 6,914 6,107
Other income H U A 5 4,885 4,158
Operating income BEIRA 229,648 221,434
Other operating expenses Hith &z 6 (65,076) (62,547)
Charge for impairment losses on loan Mk EKER 2 BEERE
receivables 7 (1,000) (725)
Profit from operations F il 163,572 158,162
Finance costs AR 6(a) (42,006) (37,467)
Profit before taxation R AT R 6 121,566 120,695
Income tax PS8 8 (20,746) (19,787)
Profit and total comprehensive income HRZFEINRZHEBAHALE
for the year 100,820 100,908
Profit and total comprehensive BRREEFEREFREEH
income for the year attributable to WA 458
shareholders 100,820 100,908
Earnings per share (in HK cents) BRAER (BA) 11 5.1 4.8

The notes on pages 73 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

as at 28 February 2019 R=E—hF_A=—+/\H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

Note 2019 2018
=2 —E-hE —ZT—N\F
$'000 $'000
ST Tt
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER ST 12 1,974 758
Loan receivables U E K 13 81,928 85,861
Trade and other receivables B 5 & HAth e K 5RIE 14 - 2,402
Deferred tax assets PRI IR & = 23(b) 229 221
,,,,,,,,,, 84131 89242
Current assets REBEE
Repossessed assets wl 0] & B 6,451 8,108
Loan receivables FEW & X 13 1,304,277 1,316,428
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H At e I 5RIE 14 5,026 7,523
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIREEEY 15 41,418 44,833
L3572 1,376,892
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEEH B A R H A RN FRIE 17 6,691 6,699
Bank loans and overdrafts SRITER NGB 16 83,950 85,097
Obligations under finance leases & S A 18 76 221
Loans from the immediate holding HEBEZERARIZER
company 21 94,000 126,000
Current taxation BIVER7S 18 23(a) 5,960 5,837
Other loans HA B 19 265,232 291,623
,,,,,,,, 455,909 515,477
Net current assets REBEERE ......901,263 861,415
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBARS 985,394 950,657
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BA ISR

as at 28 February 2019 R=ZE—NF=_A =+ /\H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA THIR )

Note 2019 2018
=2 —E-hE —ZT—NF
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Debt securities issued BETEEES 22 162,565 162,452
Obligations under finance leases EE AR 18 - 76
162,565 162,528
NET ASSETS EERHE 822,829 788,129

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHEE 24
Capital N 19,385 20,874
Reserves (e 803,444 767,255
TOTAL EQUITY AR 822,829 788,129
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 ®KEFER T NAFAHA - +/\ B ERFEET

May 2019.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
PRERER ST

Director

EBEF

The notes on pages 73 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.

%

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
BR#Em L+

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARRBEE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF A=+ \HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

Share Capital
capital/Paid- Share Capital ~ redemption Other  Retained
Note in capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
kx/ E1EE

iz EfER  RBNE  ERGE i HipRE  REER )

$000 $'000 §/000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000

S S S T S S S

At 1 March 2017 RZE-tE=f-H 21376 207,573 44,963 - 12,001 452,523 738436

Profit and total comprehensive income for ~ FREFIRZEMALEE

the year - - - - - 100,908 100,908
Final dividends approved in respect of the 5 E—EEEHETHER

previous year and paid during the year iz R SkS b)) - (14,750) = - = = (14,750)
Interim dividends declared and paid during ~ RENZE KRR 2H 4

the year R& 24(b)(i) - (16,401) - - - - (16,401)
Purchase of own shares EmaZRA 24(c)i) (502 (20,064) - 502 - - (20,064)

At 28 February 2018 and 1 March 2018~ W=F-NF-F=tN\BR
Z2-N\§=8-H 20874 156,358 44,963 502 12,001 553431 788,129

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 ERERARAHREERY
2 - - - - - I£] 79

20,874 156,358 44,963 502 12,001 553,510 788,208

Profit and total comprehensive income for ~ EREFIREAMALE

the year - - - - - 100,820 100,820
Interim dividends declared and settled in ~~ REREREABEERAS

cash and scrip during the year RAEEzRERR S b)) 8 (15,840) - - - - (15,832)
Purchase of own shares BEA AR 241 (1,497) (50,367) - 1,497 - - (50,367)
At 28 February 2019 RZZ2-AF=A=1NA 19,385 90,151 44,963 1,999 12,001 654,330 822,829

The notes on pages 73 to 160 form part of these financial 73F 1608 2 MizEEMR It ST HEHREX 2 — 585 °
statements.
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Consolidated Gash Flow Statement
ZABEHBR

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE_T—NWF_-_A-_+\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAFS TR )

Note 2019 2018
BiaE —E-hF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
T 7
Operating activities R
Profit before taxation R 3% Al g A 121,566 120,695
Adjustments for: FRF S IBEL SR -
Depreciation e 522 522
Bank interest income HRITHEHA (6) (1)
Finance costs ALE R 42,006 37,467
Charge for impairment loss on loan Nk EKRE R ZBERE
receivables 1,000 725
Net losses on loan receivables at FVPL BRATERT ABR 2 B
BERzEEFE 3 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYIZE  WE REE
equipment g 86 =
Issue of script dividend BITARK B & 8 =
Operating profit before changes in EEESRHA 2K RA
working capital 165,185 159,408
Decrease/(increase) in repossessed assets e EERAD, () 1,657 (27)
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables FEWE RO, (#h0) 15,175 (90,688)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 & H A fE U SR IR R 4,899 5,263
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and other JEETE A R EMER IR
payables #wam CRd) 250 (368)
Cash generated from operations EKRBERS 187,166 73,588
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNBEBEREH (20,646) (36,474)
Net cash generated from operating REXBRSHAS T
activities 166,520 37,114
Investing activities REXTH
Bank interest received B YEERTTH S 6 1
Payment for the purchase of property, BEMZE BEREEBEZ
plant and equipment FRIE (1,884) (12)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ~ HEYE  HEREREZ
and equipment FT 1S 5078 60 =
Net cash used in investing activities REXBARS TR (1,818) (11)
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Consolidated Gash Flow Statement

RERERER

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF A=+ \HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TR )

Note 2019 2018
Bt e —E-hEF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
T 7
Financing activities RE
(Repayment of)/proceeds from loans from  HEEBRARIZERZ
the immediate holding company (B /Fi3518 15(b) (32,000) 12,500
Proceeds from debt securities issued, net BEITEBES 21558
of issuing expenses (EHRETHRI) 15(b) - 25,875
Finance costs paid BT RE KA 15(b) (42,145) (37,065)
Repayment of other loans HthER 2 ER 15(b) (26,391) (17,016)
(Repayment of)/proceeds from bank loans  $R{TEZRZ (EH) A5
I 15(b) (1,417) 47,843
Dividends paid ERRE 24(b) (15,840) (31,151)
Payment for purchase of own shares EE B 5D 2508 (50,367) (20,064)
Capital element of finance lease rentals EffREAERSNER
paid EiSa) 15(b) (221) (215)
Interest element of finance lease rentals BENRERERS 258
paid P 15(b) (6) (14)
Net cash used in financing activities REXBARSFHE (168,387) (19,307)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BHERBELEEY
cash equivalents ORA) /i (3,685) 17,796
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHOZ2RERASEEY
beginning of year 39,836 22,040
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRZEESRBELSEZEY
of year 15(a) 36,151 39,836

The notes on pages 73 to 160 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE—_T—NWF_A-_+\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ( fr ZHEEBAESN - LUBITHIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 June 2012.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in secured financing
business in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage
loans. The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Stock Exchange”) since 12 March 2013 (“the Listing
Date").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
2(d) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 28 February 2019 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HKD"). They are prepared on the historical
cost basis except for loans receivables at FVPL which is
stated at fair value as explained in note 2(h).

—iREF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR B EE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE—F

—NEZA-+N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fr ZHEEHESN - LUBTHIR)

2

74

(i) Overview

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. Of these, the following development is

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(CONT'D)

(d) Changes in accounting policies

relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

. HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the

current accounting period.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in
relation to classification of financial assets and
measurement of credit losses. Details of the
changes in accounting policies are discussed note

2(d)(ii).

Under the transition methods chosen,

Group recognises cumulative effect of the initial
application of HKFRS 9 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 March 2018.
Comparative information is not restated. The
following table gives a summary of the opening
balance adjustments recognised for each line
item in the consolidated statement of financial

position that has been impacted by HKFRS 9:

uleZﬁE ( A= )

(d) BFBERzZEH

(i)
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MERPEEZBBYBRELELE9
SRR B2 IHB TR 2 BV AR

#K .

1= °

Impact on initial

At 28 February application of At 1 March
2018 HKFRS 9 2018

EpN RS
R-ZZE—NFZA MEEAFSE2 R=ZZB—N\FE=A
—+NH 2 —A
$'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIAE 221 (15) 206
Total non-current assets FREEEHZE 89,242 (15) 89,227
Loans receivables EUIRE R 1,402,289 94 1,402,383
Total current assets REEEHAT 1,376,892 94 1,376,986
Net current assets REEEFHE 861,415 94 861,509
Net assets EEFE 788,129 79 788,208
Reserves G 767,255 79 767,334
Total equity ERBE 788,129 79 788,208
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXE:HEE (&)
(CONT’D)

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring
financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 March 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at 1 March 2018. Therefore, comparative
information continues to be reported under HKAS
39.

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on retained profits and the
related tax impact at 1 March 2018.

(d) Changes in accounting policies (CONT'D) (d) EFBXZ2F (&)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (i) BEHBHREENEIN: [/ T
A/

AR BREENFIRBRKELS
FHERIFE395E (2@ T A - B R
B/ EANFIIERARFTESHE
E cRAENETEEFTRIEAR
BRZHTE

AEEERBBRREHEN_-F
—NF=—A—BEFEZEBEY
ERE BN MELERNEIN - A&
BERBRERZRFHEERS
HR-_ZT-N\F=A—RBZ2HN#E
B FHI - KRB EERE
R G ERIFEIRER -

TERBIBEERBMBRE LR
FOREFN_—_T-N\F=A—HZR
BaEN RGBT E -

$'000
T
Retained profits R B Fl
Release of collective impairment allowance on BEEMHERIEATETA
loan receivables reclassified to be measured at B2 BB K 2 B RE
FVPL e 79
Decrease of expected credit losses on loan IR SHA AN T 2 2 JEUR
receivables measured at amortised cost BEREHEEEE 15
Related tax HEHEAT IR (15)
Net increase in retained profits at 1 March 2018 RZZE—N\EF=A—HZRHA

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

S I3 NS 2R 79
FRBESFRRESH 2 UHERT

BB R — AR E RS
0
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(CONT'D)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (CONT'D)
(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (CONT'D)

(1)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL). These supersede HKAS 39’s
categories of held-to-maturity investments,
loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets
measured at FVPL. The classification of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based
on the business model under which
the financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.
Under HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded
in contracts where the host is a financial
asset in the scope of the standard are
not separated from the host. Instead, the
hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.

For an explanation of how the Group
classifies and measures financial assets and
recognises related gains and losses under
HKFRS 9, see respective accounting policy
notes in notes 2(h) and (k).

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (CONT'D)
(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (CONT'D)

(1)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (CONT'D)

The following table shows the original
measurement categories for each class of
the Group's financial assets under HKAS
39 and reconciles the carrying amounts
of those financial assets determined
in accordance with HKAS 39 to those
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9.

EXREETHE (&)

(d) EFHBERZ2F (&)
(i) BEMBHREERFEIF [T

A (&)
() ZzHEERzBEEZSHE
(%)

TREIAKEREFT ST
HRIFIVR BB EREEL
R EEIREREETES
AHEAIFEIREE L BB E
REERREBEE BN HREE
AIFORBEEETHR

HKAS 39
carrying amount
at 28 February

HKFRS 9
carrying amount

2018 Reclassification Remeasurement at 1 March 2018
R-E-N\F R-B-N\§
—A=t+N\H =A—BRE
BRIEEBEITER BRMBREER
E395E 2 REE BENAE BEXtE % VIR {E
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T Fr
Financial assets REBHEEA
carried at SRz &5
amortised cost BE
Cash and cash BekEe
equivalents EEY 44,833 - - 44,833
Trade and other B 5 REM
receivables eI 9,925 - - 9,925
Loan receivables Y E R 1,402,289 (111,439) 9 1,290,944
1,457,047 (111,439) 94 1,345,702
Financial assets BAFETTA
carried at FVPL BEzem
BE
Loan receivables e E R = 111,439 = 111,439
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (CONT'D)
(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (CONT'D)

(1)

(ii)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (CONT'D)

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same.

The carrying amounts for all financial
liabilities at 1 March 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application of HKFRS
9.

The Group did not designate or de-
designate any financial asset or financial
liability at FVPL at 1 March 2018.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model
in HKAS 39 with the expected credit loss
("ECL") model. The ECL model requires
an ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under
the “incurred loss” accounting model in
HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to
the following item:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, loan receivables measured
at amortised cost and trade and other
receivables);

- loan commitments issued, which are
not measured at FVPL.

Loan receivables measured at FVPL are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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FBEEMABE rERMER
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=z 4
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(d) Changes in accounting policies (CONT’'D)
(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (CONT'D)

(i)

Credit losses (CONT'D)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the
difference between (i) the contractual cash
flows that would be due to the Group if
the holder of the loan commitment draws
down on the loan and (ii) the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive if the
loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where
the effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

- loan commitments: current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

EXRETBE (&)

(d) EFHBERZ2F (&)
(i) BEMBHREERFEIF [T

A (&)
(i) 1ZEER (&)
FHERHREREER

EHEEEERERERZM
Kngfhst - EEERZME
BHRSEE (AREANOE
NAKEZRERERANEKE
BHWBIZREREZRNE
M) ZREE-

RARRBEFAET S - 5
ReZRROEFAEREA
EREXRSENASEZE
IR e E () A RETEER
ERERDBRIZRESRE
ZEMEREE -

AR EEA  QIFEHRS
ERRAIA TR RAIR -

- TEREREE EHNAE
ftb FEUCHIR - R AR HER
REEZERMNEHHE
ATME

— FELWMARE HMER
AEE

~  ERAE RBELREE
b R 2 AT
COIES

RiGtTRBEEEBRRMAEE
ZEEHHAANEEEEREER
Bz &&= A HHM o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)
(d) Changes in accounting policies (CONT'D)
(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (CONT'D)

(if)  Credit losses (CONT'D)
Measurement of ECLs (CONT'D)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

For further details on the Group's
accounting policy for accounting for credit
losses, see note 2(k).

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE
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(d) Changes in accounting policies (CONT'D)
(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (CONT'D)

(i)

Credit losses (CONT'D)
Opening balance adjustment

As a result of this change in accounting
policy, the Group has released impairment
allowance amounting to $125,000,
representing $94,000 for collective
impairment allowance and $31,000 for
individual impairment allowance. The
related financial impacts are increase in
retained profits by $78,000 and decrease in
gross deferred tax assets by $15,000 at 1
March 2018.

The following table reconciles the closing
loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 as at 28 February 2018 with
the opening loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 March

EXREETHE (&)

(d) EFHBERZ2F (&)
(i) BEMBHREERFEIF [T

A/ (&)
(i) 1ZEER (&)
MY SRR

ARLIESFTERED) A5
B B B ERER#125,000T
(94,0007t B2 R E R H X
31,000 & ERIBEREE) °
BBy BT EE—T—\F=
A— B2 REB &R FIELERIE
BEBTED R N78,0007T &
415,000 °

TERBER_ZE-NF_H
—tNABREBEEEGFERFE
3BT 2 MIARERBEHER
—E-N\F=A—BREEFL
PR E R FE IR EE 2 H]

2018. EE B EETHER
$'000
Tt
Loss allowance at 28 February 2018 under R-ZE—N\F-_A=-+N\H
HKAS 39 BRIEB B ERE3R
BiERE 125
Release of collective impairment allowance on BB E#H D E AR A FET A
loan receivables reclassified as measured at B2 EWE R 2 BEERE
FVPL B (79)
Decrease of expected credit losses on loan B IRBESHR NG T 2 2 R
receivables measured at amortised cost BRZBHREERE (15)
Release of individual impairment allowance e EHN D ERE AT ERTA
as fair value loss on loan receivables B2 EWE 2 @ERIRE
reclassified as measured at FVPL B (fERRATEEE) (31)
Loss allowance at 1 March 2018 under HKFRS R -—Z— N\FE=A—HEE
9 BB R EAERIF I 2
EiE R e -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)
(d) Changes in accounting policies (CONT'D)
(ii) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (CONT'D)

(iif)  Hedge accounting
The Group does not apply hedge
accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9
has no significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements in this regard.

(iv)  Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been
applied retrospectively, except as described
below:

- Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in
retained profits as at 1 March 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented
for the year ended 28 February 2018
continues to be reported under HKAS
39 and thus may not be comparable
with the current period.

- The determination of the business
model within which a financial asset
is held has been made on the basis
of the facts and circumstances that
existed at 1 March 2018 (the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group):

- If, at the date of initial application,
the assessment of whether there has
been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition would
have involved undue cost or effort, a
lifetime ECL has been recognised for
that financial instrument.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR

EXREFTEE (&)

(d) EFBERZ2F (&)
(i) BEMBHREEREIN [£MT
A/ (&)

(ifi)

(iv)

Espik-riy 4
AEBYERBE PR
- RNE B BHRE ERIZE9
S AN SR R 1 75 T 2 B S
RUBEBRTE -

B

RABBM RS EAF IR
FIBBMETBCRE D HE
B - HETFIRTIE RS -

— EFHLERHEMNERR
KB - FHWNE BT
REER B FTEE
ZEREERAEESE
RZZE—-—NEFE=H—H
ZRE BN P HER - E
- HE_T—NF_A
Z+NBLEFEEMZT
MEREERERSS
sHERIFE 395 & - K
gk 1~ A] B2 7N BR A A & Rt
EH L8

- RESMEBEEZEHE
ANRBER-_F—NF
ZA—B (XEEERE
REBUBREERIE
AR FEZSEER
TBRMEEE °

- HREXEMB BTG
= & = be B )16 #E R A
KEBRBE MG S R
NAERANEKEE S - At
ZERT AR MR
HIEEmBIE-



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(CONT'D)

(e)

Use of estimate and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Credit losses and impairment of assets are the key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Policies on credit losses and impairment of assets are
set out in note 2(k).

EXRgBX (&)

(e)

5 At &t I 1 I
RENEETAMBRESEN ZMBERE
FREEE LA - AT RRER - M
FHE - R RBRREFEBRZ BRI
FF2HNEE  AFE  WRARAXHE
Bz FhT REERRDERNBELR
RERBBEATHERSGEZSARMA
= MASERBKRAEAHBBARLE
BEMKRESEERBERAEZE
% o B A RIB IR F b5t

BEF RAERRR S B EERN - WEFHEE
ZIEFTESERAFHET ZHMELR
& RIEBEINZHRAER  HIEF]
BN MAKPEGELTE  MSEF
X & 7T B B R SR A A el o

EFEERREERERNBEHRAAS
EXEREH T —EAHRFERHAEER
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(f)

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the provision of services and disposal
of repossessed assets in the ordinary course of the
Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial
assets are recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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(CONT’'D)
(f) Revenue recognition (CONT’'D)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Fee income

Fee income is recognised when the corresponding
service is provided, except where the fee is
charged to cover the costs of a continuing service
to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is interest
in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised
as income in the accounting period in which the
costs or risk are incurred or is accounted for as
interest income.

Disposal of repossessed assets

Disposal gain or loss is recognised when the
buyer of the repossessed assets takes possession
of and accepts the goods.

Disposal gain or loss was recognised on a similar
basis in the comparative period under HKAS 18,
Revenue, where it was recognised when the
buyer of the repossessed assets had accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payment receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(9)

(h)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flow and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale.

Financial instruments

(i) Initial recognition
The Group initially recognises financial assets and
financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Other financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised using settlement date accounting.

Financial instruments are measured initially at
fair value, which normally will be equal to the
transaction price plus, in case of a financial asset
or financial liability not held at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction
costs on financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately.
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B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& BB 158E SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)
(h) Financial instruments (CONT'D)
(ii) Classification and measurement
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables mainly comprise pawn
loans and mortgage loans. Pawn loans are loans
provided whereby personal property such as gold,
jewellery and diamonds, watches and consumer
electronic products are used as collateral for the
security of the loans. Mortgage loans are loans
secured by real estates.

Policy applicable from 1 March 2018

Loans and receivables held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

- amortised cost, if the loan and receivable
is held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI1”). Interest
income from the loan and receivable is
calculated using the effective interest
method;

- FVOCI-recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the loan and receivable comprise
solely payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss
of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses. When the loan and receivable is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss; or

- FVPL, if the loan and receivable does
not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the loan and
receivable (including interest) are recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(h)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

(ii) Classification and measurement (CONT'D)

Policy applicable from 1 March 2018 (CONT'D)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows
are SPPI, the Group considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount
of contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making the assessment
the Group considers:

- Contingent events that would change the
amount and timing of cash flows;

- Leverage features;
- Prepayment and extension terms;

- Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash
flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse loans); and

- Features that modify consideration of the
time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).

Policy applicable prior to 1 March 2018

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market other than (1)
those that the Group intends to sell immediately
or in the near term, which are classified as held
for trading; (2) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates as at fair value through
profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or (3) those
where the Group may not recover substantially
all of its initial investment, other than because
of credit deterioration, which will be classified as
available-for-sale.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment losses, if any (see note 2(k)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BRE S - LUBITTHIR)

(CONT’'D)
(h) Financial instruments (CONT'D)

(i)

(iii)

Classification and measurement (CONT'D)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank loans and
overdrafts, other payables, loans from the
immediate holding company, other loans and
debt securities issued) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognise a financial asset when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the asset expire, or where it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to another entity.

The Group derecognise a financial liability
when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

EXRSFTEE (&)

(h)y €@TH (&)

(i)

(iii)

PERHE (M
BBERAIIES A
SREHE (RERTERREY X
iR - B IR A T 2 BT
R RE BTEISES ) RER
FEBHER LB AT 2 -

AU TER
EARREREEREREZEN
RANERE  AEARER S —ER
BRECREEMMBERZIBREBY
R K B RE - ARE SR LRSS
BEE -

EEKFTRIAZ B EERRR B
B AREERIIEIASHA

&

Annual Report 2019 =Z— N FFR 89




Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR B EE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B ZHfERAESN - UBITTHIR)

2

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments,
of such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
note 2(j). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 2(k). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
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(CONT'D)

)]

(k)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss,
if any (see note 2(k)). Depreciation is calculated on
a straight-line basis to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Over the shorter of
the unexpired term
of lease or 5 years
5 years
5 years

— Leasehold improvements

— Furniture and fixtures
— Motor vehicles

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Financial assets

Policy applicable from 1 March 2018

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that would
be due to the Group if the holder of the loan
commitment draws down on the loan and (ii) the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive if
the loan is drawn down.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (CONT’'D)

(i)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Policy applicable from 1 March 2018 (CONT'D)

Measurement of ECLs (CONT'D)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

— loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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B B AR B RE
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(CONT’'D)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (CONT'D)

(i)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Policy applicable from 1 March 2018 (CONT'D)

Measurement of ECLs (CONT'D)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of
the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument (including a loan commitment) has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (CONT’'D)

(i)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Policy applicable from 1 March 2018 (CONT'D)

Significant increases in credit risk (CONT'D)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs
is considered to be the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a
loan commitment, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default occurring on the loan to
which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.
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(CONT’'D)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (CONT'D)

(i)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Policy applicable from 1 March 2018 (CONT'D)

Significant increases in credit risk (CONT'D)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-
impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(f)(i). Interest income is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (CONT’'D)

(i)

Financial assets (CONT'D)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-
impaired financial assets (CONT'D)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5B 1583E& 4h » LABILYIR)

(CONT’'D)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (CONT’'D)

(i)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Policy applicable prior to 1 March 2018

Prior to 1 March 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified as at FVPL
(e.g. trade and other receivables, available-
forsale investments and held-to-maturity debt
securities). Under the “incurred loss” model, an
impairment loss was recognised only when there
was objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment included:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the borrower.

If any such evidence exists, impairment losses are
recognised that the carrying amount is reduced
to the estimated recoverable amount by means of
a charge to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (CONT’'D)

(i)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Policy applicable prior to 1 March 2018 (CONT'D)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of loans
and receivables, which are measured at amortised
cost, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against loans and receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that borrower are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables
are measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets). Receivables with a
short duration are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for impairment losses consists
of two components: individual impairment
allowances, and collective impairment allowances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE—_T—NWF_A-_+\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ( fr ZHEEBAESN - LUBITHIR)

(CONT’'D)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (CONT'D)

(i)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Loans and receivables (CONT'D)

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant,
and collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is or continues to be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment. Assets
that are not individually significant are collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping together
financial assets with similar risk characteristics.

The individual impairment allowance is based
upon management’s best estimate of the
present value of cash flows which are expected
to be received discounted at the original
effective interest rate. In estimating these cash
flows, management make judgements about
the borrower’s financial situation and the net
realisable value of any underlying collateral or
guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired
asset is assessed on its merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment
allowances, management uses statistical
modelling and considers historical trends of
factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations, and economic factors. In order
to estimate the required allowance, the Group
makes assumptions both to define the way the
Group models inherent losses and to determine
the required input parameters, based on historical
experience and current economic conditions.

Where there is no reasonable prospect of
recovery, the loan and the related interest
receivables are written off.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(C
(k)

ONT'D)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (CONT’'D)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting date
to identify indications that other assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& BB 158E SN LABTTIIR)

(CONT'D)

()

(m)

(n)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loan receivables granted
under the Pawnbrokers Ordinance (Chapter 166 of the
laws of Hong Kong), the Group takes possession of the
collateral assets from the customers. This possession
takes place once a loan becomes overdue, subject to a
grace period granted at the discretion of the Group in
certain cases.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the
amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on
the date of repossession, which is generally below the
net realisable value of the repossessed assets. Upon
repossession of the assets, the related loan receivables
are derecognised from the statement of financial
position. Subsequently, repossessed assets are carried
at the lower of the amount initially recognised or
net realisable value and are therefore written down
if and when the net realisable value falls to below
the carrying amount of the asset. The excess/shortfall
of the net proceeds over the carrying amount of the
repossessed assets is recognised as a gain/loss upon
the disposal of the assets.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Accruals and other payables

Accruals and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(o)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE—_T—NWF_A-_+\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ( fr ZHEEBAESN - LUBITHIR)

(CONT'D)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to business combinations, or
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary difference support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(a)

Income tax (CONT'D)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- In the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5B 1583E& 4h » LABILYIR)

(CONT’'D)
(q) Income tax (CONT'D)

In the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- The same taxable entity; or

- Different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme as
defined contribution schemes. The employer’s
monthly contributions to the scheme are at a
maximum of 5% of each employee’s monthly
salary, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $30,000.

The cost of all these schemes is charged to profit
or loss of the Group for the year concerned
and the assets of all these schemes are held
separately from those of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (CONT'D)

(iii) Long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed
the required number of years of service to the
Group in order to be eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their
employment. The Group is liable to make such
payments in the event that such a termination of
employment meets the circumstances specified in
the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of probable
future long service payments based on the
best estimate of the probable future outflow
of resources which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group at the
reporting date.

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT’'D)
(s) Related parties (CONT'D)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

SETEER (&)

(s) BAER (&|

)

(b) fH—RIE A TG BN
EREAEELRE

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

—%AiZLﬁ%E&A? HZBERER
RIEARZEZALTHEZAL
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ZEREASEBR —SE
RERR (AEEAF KB
NIV EN )= PNCIE A i R ]
maE) -

—HEERR EEZ
TiAéﬁi(i
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ZHENRRBEDRE)

MAERBYBR—-F=HZA

HERRFE=-STERBZAZ
X - Mar—EBEBAUR/ZE=
TERBZBENRT -
ERAAEEYEAEEER
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ERSEMBSEERAKE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR B EE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BEE S - LUBITTHIR)

2

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONT'D)

(t)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of businesses
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
of class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HZE—

B B AR B RE

—NEZA-+N\ALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%% AR )

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the granting of
pawn loans and mortgage loans in Hong Kong.

Revenue represents interest income earned on pawn loans
and mortgage loans, and results on disposal of repossessed
assets. The amount of each nature of business of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

3

s 73
REEZ EBEAEEEE MM
BIEARER -

TEER KR

Wastg S B R RIS EME R R ZF S
WAREHERBEIEE L ¥E - FR REE

BHEEER MmN

2019 2018
—E-hEF T—N\F
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Revenue from pawn loan business HE SR ER 2 W
Interest income from pawn loan receivables REBRFEEGTE 2 IR
calculated using the effective interest HEERAEMHA
method 7,843 58,754
Interest income from pawn loan LA ER AR Z B
receivables at FVPL HMEERZFBUA 51,351 -
Gain on disposal of repossessed assets &S AU E & E 2 e 6,914 6,107
Total revenue from pawn loan business HEERER 2 B 66,108 64,861
Revenue from mortgage loan business RIBREAE T ER < Was
Interest income from mortgage loan REBRFRETE 2 IR
receivables calculated using the ZIBERER 2 HE
effective interest method 1 ON 158,655 152,415
Total 4Est 224,763 217,276

Cost of disposed of repossessed assets the year ended 28
February 2019 amounted to $45.9 million (28 February
2018: $46.1 million).

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes one
customer (28 February 2018: two customers) with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenues.
During the year ended 28 February 2019, revenues from
interest income on mortgage loan receivables from this
customer (28 February 2018: two customers), including
interest income from entities which are known to the
Group to be under common control with this customer,
amounted to approximately $25.1 million (28 February 2018:
amounted to approximately $36.1 million and $21.8 million
respectively).

2T —hE-_A— Jr)\EJtir el
[ & & 7 AN /45,900,0000T ( ZE— N\F =
A=+/\H : 46,100,0007T) °

AEECEFERZ L HPF—F2RF (=%
—N\F_A=-+N\B MEREF) BAEE#ET
ZRGBBAREFWRZE Z10% - HE-_T—H
F_A-FTNBLEFE BRZEF (ZZE—AN\
F_A-+\H MEBEEF)EBEFERZ
FERAZKZ (BREAEBENEZTR X
HEES 2 BB 2 FBUWA) 49425,100,000
T(ZE—NF_A -+ NH: 28445
36,100,0007T }%21,800,0007% ) °
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B SRR M aE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BEE S - LUBITTHIR)

4

110

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has one reportable segment, which is the
provision of secured financing business in Hong Kong,
including pawn loans and mortgage loans. Therefore, no

4 DERKE

additional reportable segment and geographical information

have been presented.

REEA—HAZ2HH - RFBREAEM
BE (BRASERMRBEMRER) X5 -
It SR 2 DI BESNA] 2D HE S B Y o

OTHER INCOME 5 HfglgA
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
FoE T
Rental income AL PN 1,642 1,089
Interest income on unsecured loans A E T FEHA - 891
Credit related fee income EEMHRBAZERRKRA 3,042 1,699
Bank interest income HRITHEHA 6 1
Others Hth 195 478
4,885 4,158
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R K M aE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BRE S - LUBITTHIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

6 KF

Al g8 7

BRBE A& M TS HIRR A T B IRRZR:

2019 2018
—ZE-h#F —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) ®ERA

Finance charges on obligations under BEREAE ZHE
finance leases ZH 6 14

Interest on loans from the immediate HEBEBRARZER
holding company A 6,098 5,268
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERMREZHE 4,149 3,305
Interest on other loans HEEFF L 21,853 19,524
Interest on debt securities issued BEITEBESFE 9,900 9,356
42,006 37,467

(b) Staff costs (b) EIRA

Salaries and other benefits o REMBEF 19,221 18,320
Directors’ remuneration (note 9) EEHM (M) 9,383 9,299

Contributions to defined contribution TE R RGET S 2 R
scheme 552 550

Charge for/(release of) provision for ik (BO) RH

long service payment AR 7% & Bt 128 (121)
29,284 28,048
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR B EE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BEE S - LUBITTHIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT'D) 6 FBRBIADEF (&)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\EF
$'000 $'000
e Tt
(c) Other operating expenses () HLKEREX
Premises and equipment expenses EYS B 153
excluding depreciation: (TBEFE) :
rental of premises ek 13,026 12,271
maintenance, repairs and others RE  HEBERHAM 1,012 1,248
14,038 13,519
Auditors’ remuneration Gl 1,180 1,107
Depreciation (note 12) e (MI5E12) 522 522
Advertising expenses EERX 9,856 11,291
Legal and professional fees FEREXEHR 4,430 2,900
Net loss on disposal on property, plant LEWZE  HE R
and equipment B Spi= Ve 86 -
Net loss on loans receivables at FVPL BATEF ABRZ
W E R 2 EEFE 3 =
Others Hith 5,677 5,160
21,754 20,980
65,076 62,547
7 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LOAN 7 EWRERZEHEEIE
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
S T
Impairment losses on loan receivables BWER 2 BIEERE
Expected credit loss FEEEEEE
— Stage 1 — BB - =
— Stage 2 — ZF2REER - =
— Stage 3 — ZB3MER 1,000 =
Individual impairment losses &R B EEE - 925
Collective impairment losses BEREEE - (200)
1,000 725
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R K M aE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5B 1583E& 4h » LABILYIR)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 REZEESEZEWARZIFIEH
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) REFEEEEWAXRZBIERE:
comprehensive income represents:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —=—\FE
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BB IE-BERIEHR
Provision for the year (note 23(a)) FAEE (E23@)) 20,769 19,613
Under-provision in respect of prior years BAEFERETR - 165
20,769 19,778
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary B N Bl 22 R
differences (note 23(b)) (FFzE23(b)) (23) 9
Tax expense IR X 20,746 19,787
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 is MAEBRAIRABRE2017FH 5 (1E3])
calculated at 8.25% for the first $2,000,000 estimated (%7%)1'7&%?;}5)?@)\2%” SRR AR
assessable profits and 16.5% for estimated assessable %”ZZ’SE.EHE ZE-NEEBA
profits above $2,000,000 for the Group entity qualified 15 %RT’?&%EBZL/{Tth‘I' : 52,000,000
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime introduced TUIh AT R BUs MR T £ 8.25% T &
pursuant to the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) 2,000,000 T A& Z (&t FE SR Fi o 7| Bl 3%
Bill 2017, taking into account a reduction granted by BE16.5% 8 - WG REBRRIITE
the Hong Kong SAR Government of 75% of the tax Eﬁkﬁﬁiif)\ﬁi NERMERFT
payable for the year of assessment 2018-19 subject to BT 2T5%ENBIIERER - BEEBRR
a maximum reduction of $20,000 for each business J:ﬁE?%ZO 0007 ( ZZE—N\F : HFIBHE
(2018: to a maximum reduction of $30,000 for each EiR PR A30,0000T) °
business).
For the year ended 28 February 2018, Hong Kong HE—_ZT—)\F-_A-_+/N\HLFE &
profits tax was calculated at a single flat rate of 16.5% 1S TREE‘HE.#F?:%?H@T'H* B — R &K
of the estimated assessable profits. 16.5%5T &
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M aE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BEE S - LUBITTHIR)

8

114

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 RHFESEEWARZIFEH (&)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(CONT'D)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEAFEGEZHERIHESH SN Z
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HER
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Profit before taxation B A58 A1 g ) 121,566 120,695
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRBRDEN 2 BEFIE (18
calculated at Hong Kong profit tax rate BBISHE8.25%
of 8.25% or 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 5%16.5% (=& — /)\&F:
16.5% ) 5T %) 19,894 19,915
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERMBA Z RBZE (1 =
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PAIHB ARG 2 975 45
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZARBATIBEIE 2
recognised M E - 7
Tax effect of taxable temporary differences RFERR Z JERRTH B S =50 &
not recognised MBTE - (165)
Statutory tax concession ETE BRI R (122) (180)
Under-provision in prior years BAEFERETR - 165
Actual tax expense ERHEMAS 20,746 19,787

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR



DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R K M aE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5B 1583E& 4h » LABILYIR)

9 EEEEN

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

EZHFHRETEQBIGHIEI8I(MNERAT
(BREESNDER) ROIF28EENT -

Year ended 28 February 2019 BE-Z-hF-_A=-+NBLFE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to Mandatory
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total
e ERR 5
BExne BYFIz MiERAL  AEEHEN st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive directors HITES
Chan Kai Ho, Edward BRER - 1,651 5,045 18 6,714
Chan Ying Yu PR 25 H) - 552 - 18 570
Chan Chart Man PREE XX - 472 - - 472
Chan Mei Fong B3 - 889 - 18 907
Non-executive director  FEHTES
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion  BREUEK 180 - - - 180
Independent non- BYEHTES
executive directors
Lam On Tai N 180 - - - 180
Leung Shiu Ki Ik 180 - - - 180
Yip Ngai 5 180 - - - 180
Total st 720 3,564 5,045 54 9,383
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M aE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BEE S - LUBITTHIR)

9
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT'D)
Year ended 28 February 2018

9 EEHM(&E)
BE-_Z—\GFZAZ-+N\HLEFE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and benefits in  Discretionary to Mandatory
Directors' fees kind bonuses Provident Fund Total
e RK 58 i M
0k ERIEES BBEL ARBEER FEEy
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive directors HiTES
Chan Kai Ho, Edward BRERZR - 1,578 5,160 18 6,756
Chan Ying Yu PR 255 - 512 - 18 530
Chan Chart Man PR3E XX - 438 = = 438
Chan Mei Fong FES: = 837 = 18 855
Non-executive director  FEHTES
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion — BREUEL 180 - - - 180
Independent non- BYEHTES
executive directors
Lam On Tai W& TR 165 - = = 165
Chan Wing Lee BR oK F) 15 - - - 15
Leung Shiu Ki I 180 - - - 180
Yip Ngai £33 180 - - - 180
Total et 720 3,365 5,160 54 9,299

No directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year (2018: Nil).

During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable by
the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as set out in note 10 below as an inducement to

T-N\F E)-

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss BHE(ZS—N\F: &)

of office (2018: Nil).

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BRE S - LUBITTHIR)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 10
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2018: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining three (2018: three) are as follows:

R HMAL

hEERFMALHEME (ZT—/\F M
F)REE BEZHMNMEOWE - BT =%
(ZF—N\F: =8) ALZHFMBTNT :

2019 2018

—ZE-h#F —ZE-NF

$'000 $'000

S T

Salaries and other emoluments e LEMmBE 2,500 2,334

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 842 704

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund SRBIMERTES K 54 54

3,396 3,092

The emoluments of the three (2018: three) individuals with Z=H(ZE—N\F =R ReFALzH
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: BHAE LA S S5 E A -

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —E-NF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

$Nil — $1,000,000 ZJT%£1,000,0007T 1 1

$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1,000,0017C21,500,0007T 2 2
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PR AR B EE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE—F

—NEZA-TNBLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fk 5 Ef5BAE SN - LABTTIIR )

1

118

EARNINGS PER SHARE 1

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 28 February 2019 of $100,820,000 (28
February 2018: $100,908,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,971,692,000 (28 February 2018: 2,120,477,000)
ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the vyear,
calculated as follows:

BRER

SREXRER

BEREABFDBREEEZE-"FTE—NLF=-A
— N\ B IEFE Z AR B SRR FE G %5 7
100,820,000t (=ZE—N\F=-_A=+/\H:
100,908,0007T ) LA & & X1,971,692,0004% ( —
?—}\E—ﬂ —+N\H:2,120,477,0008% ) 7

NE|BBITERRZ EFHEEEDT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Z AR INFE-F 152
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
Number of Number of
shares shares
gy 4= aar-4=
‘000 ‘000
T T
Issued ordinary share at 1 March R=A—BzB3TEEi 2,087,360 2,137,624
Effect of scrip dividend issued (note 24(c)(ii) B ETRERG 22
(BEEE24(0)i)) 144 -
Effect of purchase of own shares (note 24(c) BEBEIE F XDz 2
(iif)) (BT EE24(c)(iii) ) (115,812) (17,147)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R =8 —+/\H 2 Z @0t
at 28 February 58 1,971,692 2,120,477

No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there was no
potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both years.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R K M aE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BRE S - LUBITTHIR)

Property, plant and equipment

12 V¥ BEKRKRE
() Y% BERRE

Leasehold Furniture and
improvements fixtures  Motor vehicles Total
HEMERE RAREE AE it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T7 T7 T
Cost: |5
At 1 March 2017 R_T—tF
=H—H 3,780 2,750 2,265 8,795
Additions NE - 12 = 12
Disposal HE - - - -
At 28 February 2018 RZZE—)\F
—AZ=+NHB 3,780 2,762 2,265 8,807
Accumulated 2iE:
depreciation:
At 1 March 2017 R+
=H—H 3,696 2,588 1,243 7,527
Charge for the year FAZH 62 108 352 522
Written back on disposal &K@l - - - =
At 28 February 2018 R=ZZT—N\F
—A=+NH 3,758 2,696 1,595 8,049
Net book value: BRERE :
At 28 February 2018 RZZT—)\F
—A=tANH 22 66 670 758
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PR AR B EE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BEE S - LUBITTHIR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

120

(C
(a)

(b)

12 Y% BERRE (E)

ONT'D)
Property, plant and equipment (CONT’D) () ME-BERRZE (&)
Leasehold Furniture and
improvements fixtures Motor vehicles Total
HEMERE RAREE RE st
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
T T T T
Cost: RN
At 1 March 2018 R-T—\F
=H—H 3,780 2,762 2,265 8,807
Additions A= 159 726 999 1,884
Disposal HE - - (758) (758)
At 28 February 2019 RZZT—NEF
—A=+/H 3,939 3,488 2,506 9,933
Accumulated RITFE:
depreciation:
At 1 March 2018 RZZB—N\&F
=—H—H 3,758 2,696 1,595 8,049
Charge for the year FRZH 16 67 439 522
Written back on disposal &R [E] - - (612) (612)
At 28 February 2019 RZZE—NF
—A=+NH 3,774 2,763 1,422 7,959
Net book value: BRTEFHE
At 28 February 2019 RZZE—NEF
—A=+NH 165 725 1,084 1,974
Property, plant and equipment held under finance (b) REMEHERBFEZYE BRERRE
leases
The Group leases motor vehicle under finance lease AEBREBE_ZE-NFER@EHER
expiring until 2019. At the end of the lease term the 98 REEHERE  AEBAER
Group has the option to purchase the leased vehicle at RAEBEZEEEEERERE - HENR
a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. None EaELNAHEE -
of the lease includes contingent rentals.
Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR




13 LOAN RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE

13 EWER

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& BB 158E SN LABTTIIR)

28 February

28 February

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
—H=+N\H = iy AN =
$'000 $'000
e T
Loan receivables at amortised cost: REBHERAARTEZERERR
— Pawn loans —HEER 29,837 130,866
— Accrued interests of pawn loans —HE BN R A 591 9,407
30,428 140,273
Less: Impairment allowance B ORERE
Stage 1 FIPEER - =
Stage 2 F2PEER - -
Stage 3 FEIMER - -
Individually assessed & B FE A - (31)
Collectively assessed R - (94)
Net pawn loan receivables FEU I B SOF 5 30,428 140,148
Mortgage loans RIBEAER 1,223,295 1,252,096
— Accrued interests of mortgage loans —RBRERE R 2 EETFIE 12,505 10,045
1,235,800 1,262,141
Less: Impairment allowance B ORERE
Stage 1 F1PEER - -
Stage 2 F2MEER - -
Stage 3 FIEER (1,000) =
Individually assessed & Bl 5T A - =
Collectively assessed BRI - =
Net mortgage loan receivables FEW IR E TSR 1,234,800 1,262,141
Net loan receivables at amortised cost RESEN AT E 2 FEIE R
he | 1,265,228 1,402,289
Loan receivables at FVPL: BAFETABEZEW
¢/
Pawn loans HEER 120,977 =
Total loan receivables FEWERAHE 1,386,205 1,402,289
Current portion included under current FIRRENE EIR N 2 BIHAE
assets (1,304,277) (1,316,428)
Amounts due after one year included under  FIRAIERBIEEE N — 1%
non-current assets Q] 81,928 85,861
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B £ E Lk

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ([ BAAEIN - LABITTIIR)

13 LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’'D) 13 BWRER (&)
(a) Movement in impairment allowance (a) REREES
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
Expected credit loss Loss allowances
BHEEER BERAE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total  Individual  Collective Total
FIRE FIMER FE3MRER st &5 B #ar
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tr Tr T Fr Fr
At 1 March R=R—H - - - - 1,025 294 1,319

Impairment losses ~ RE&EHKR
charged/(released)  (HRl) ZR(E

to profit or loss B - - 1,000 1,000 925 (200) 725
Uncollectible amounts #i#57~ a4z @l

written off | - - - - (1,919) = (1,919
At 28 February RZA=+NR - - 1,000 1,000 31 9% 125
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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13 EWRER(E)
(b) EREADAT

13 LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’'D)
(b) Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due
date and not net of loss allowance.

REDMIDERGHZIH B R AL EH
BRE 1R -

Pawn loans
at amortised Pawn loans at Mortgage
cost FVPL loans Total
RESERA RAFETA
TEZHE B2 HBE
=€ EXN REEHRER st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
28 February 2019 —E-hEF
—A=+NH
Not past due 3 4% 580 HR 27,023 117,852 1,034,040 1,178,915
Less than 1 month B HA DR E A
past due 3,090 2,445 72,880 78,415
1 to less than 3 wBHREAZE
months past due DR3ME A 315 441 112,693 113,449
3 to less than 6 BH3EA =
months past due DH6ME A - 239 - 239
6 months to 1 year BmHAGE A = 14F
past due - - 8,661 8,661
Over 1 year past due EHRF LA £ - - 7,526 7,526
30,428 120,977 1,235,800 1,387,205
28 February 2018 —E—N\F
—HA=+NH
Not past due 37 #2360 EA 136,751 - 1,136,244 1,272,995
Less than 1 month B H D1 E A
past due 2,603 = 103,207 105,810
1 to less than 3 BHNEAZE
months past due DA31E A 367 - 11,837 12,204
3 to less than 6 BHA3EAZE
months past due Dr6(E A - - 3,327 3,327
6 months to 1 year EHA6(E A =14
past due 552 - - 552
Over 1 year past due BHAF LA £ - - 7,526 7,526
140,273 - 1,262,141 1,402,414
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fk 5 Ef5BAE SN - LABTTIIR )

13 LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’'D)
(b) Ageing analysis (CONT'D)

Of the mortgage loans which have been past due for
one month or above, except for one mortgage loan
amounted to $7.5 million on which an allowance
for expected credit loss had been recognised, the
respective valuations of the collaterals can fully cover
the outstanding balances of these loans as at 28
February 2019. In respect of the mortgage loans
which have been past due for less than 1 month,
the amounts mainly represent occasional delay in
repayment and are not an indication of significant
deterioration of credit quality of these mortgage loans.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out
in note 25(a).

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13 EWER (&)
(b) BREDHT ()
LS e — @ A s L2 R BEEE R
BB —% 587,500,000 2 1RIB K I
EREEREHEEBEREN R
—hWE-A-+N\B BHEEE 2 HE
RABERENSERZ AEEEH @
HOMVEA ZRBERFERDIEZARN
BRELEERTER W RARREFIRE
BRERZ EEEREESL-

ERAAEBEERR ZE— P BN
F£25(a) °

14 EZRHMEWFIE

28 February 28 February

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
—A=+N\H —AZ=+N\B
$'000 $'000
o T
Trade receivables H 5 WA 564 49
Deposits and payments in advance e RIENFIA 4,360 9,774
Others Ht 102 102
5,026 9,925
Non-current portion of deposits and HIRIERBIEEIR NRE R
payments in advance included under non- TR RRIE 2 JEBNERER 5
current assets - (2,402)
Amounts due within one year included under ZIRRBIEEE MR —FA
current assets B Bfzk T8 5,026 7,523

Trade receivables are due within 60 days from the date
of billing. All of the trade and other receivables are not
impaired and expected to be recovered within one year,
except for prepayment amounting to $Nil (28 February 2018:
$2.4 million) that is expected to be recovered over one year.
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for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BRE S - LUBITTHIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) 14 EZ R HMEWE (&)

(a) Ageing analysis of trade receivables () EZEWFIEZIRERD M
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not I AR AR A R IRRE 2 B 5 IR 2 Bk
considered to be impaired is as follows: BT

28 February 28 February
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
—H=+NH —A=+NB8
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Not past due 3 A 78 HA 564 16
Less than 1 month past due # DR E A - 33
564 49
Receivables that were not past due relate to a wide N7 A% 580 B 7 JRE LS 0 T B 25 42 N 3T B A2 4

range of customers for whom there was no recent ek BRFEER -

history of default.

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 ReRAEEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () RERREZEEYEHE:

2019 2018
—ZE-h#F —E-NF
$'000 $'000
T Tz
Cash on hand FHRE 5,344 4,760
Cash at banks RITHE 36,074 40,073

Cash and cash equivalents in the REBIRAR 2R RE S
statements of financial position ZEY 41,418 44,833
Bank overdrafts (note 16) RITEX (MFE16) (5.267) (4,997)

Cash and cash equivalents in the WiEeRenErkcEE R
consolidated cash flow statement HEeEEY 36,151 39,836
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for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fk 5 Ef5BAE SN - LABTTIIR )

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’'D)

15 RERRSEEY (&)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RBTEBFIELZEBEYHEK:
activities:
The table below details changes in the Group's TEREVNAEBREFBMEEB 2 BEE
liabilities from financing activities, including both cash B ERRERe IR EH -/
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BEBMELEzBERREREERIK
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or RRETREBRBERERIBEAKRAR
future cash flows will be, classified in the cash flow BRI ensEc8E.
statement as cash flows from financing activities.
Loans
from the
immediate
Finance Other holding Debt  Accrued
Bank loans leases loans  company Securities Interest Total
ERER
BTEXN RBEHE HUER QFA2EXR  BEEEF  EHRE “@sr
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
T T T T T THL THL
At 1 March 2018 RZB-N\F
=H—H 80,100 297 291,623 126,000 162,452 3,383 663,855
Changes from REWMERS
financing cash MEZ
flows: 2E
Repayment from bank  $#17E 2
loans BR (1,417) = - - - = (1,417)
Repayment of other ~ EfEZH v
loans BN - - (26,391) - - - (26,391)
Capital element of ENRERE
finance lease rentals ~ HEMER
paid bl = (221) - - - - (221)
Interest element of ENRERE
finance lease rentals ~ M&ZF8
paid sk - (6) = = = = (6)
Finance costs paid ERBEKAE - - - - = (42,145)  (42,145)
Repayment from loans ~ EBIERA A
from the immediate ~ ZE#HZ
holding company B; - - - (32,000) = = (32,000)
Proceeds from debt BETER
securities issued, net  BHZFE
of issuing expenses FE (B
BREEAT
F¥%) - = = = = = =
Total changes from  RERERSE
financing cash REZED
flows ok (1,417) (227)  (26,391)  (32,000) - (42,145)  (102,180)
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for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BRE S - LUBITTHIR)

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’'D)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities: (CONT'D)

15 BERBESEEY (&)
RETHAEEZAREE: (8

(b)

Loan
from the
immediate
Finance Other holding Debt  Accrued
Bank loans leases loans  company Securities Interest Total
EREZR
BITER HEHE HUER 2QRZEXN  EBEF  ERAE @t
HKD'000  HKD’000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Exchange adjustments [ % 1% = = = = = = =
Changes in fair value —~ AFEEE - - - - - - -
Other changes: Hin 2%
Finance charges on RATHERE
obligations under ZREER
finance leases - 6 - - - - 6
Amortisation of BRE BT
discount of debt ERERZ
securities issued B - - - - 13 - 13
Interest expenses FISHEX = = = = = 41,887 41,887
Total other changes ~ HAb&sh4azE - 6 - - 113 41,887 42,006
At 28 February 2019  R=Z—hF
—A=-tNH 78,683 76 265,232 94,000 162,565 3,125 603,681
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’'D)

128

15 RERRSEEY (&)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) REIBFEEZEEHE: (&)
activities: (CONT'D)
Loan
from the
immediate
Finance Other holding Debt  Accrued
Bank loans leases loans  company Securities Interest Total
EEBEZR
BTEXR ®EHE HUER QFAZEXR  EEEF ESRE #@sr
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 March 2017 RZZ—+4F
=H—H 32,257 512 308,639 113,500 136,476 3,096 594,480
Changes from RERERS
financing cash MEL
flows: 29
Proceeds from bank  $#17EHZ
loans PSR 47,843 = - - - - 47,843
Repayment of other ~ EfEZHz
loans BN - - (17,016) - - - (17,016)
Capital element of ENRERE
finance lease rentals ~ HEMER
paid bl - (215) = = = = (215)
Interest element of ENRERE
finance lease rentals ~ M&ZF 8
paid sk = (14) = = = = (14)
Finance costs paid ERBEKA - - - - = (37,065  (37,065)
Proceeds from loans ~ EEHERA A
from the immediate ~ ZEHZ
holding company g SR - = - 12,500 - - 12,500
Proceeds from debt BETER
securities issued, net  BHZFE
of issuing expenses FE (B
BREEAT
FY) = - - - 25,875 - 25,875
Total changes from REMERD
financing cash flows  REZEE
k] 47,843 (229) (17,016) 12,500 25,875 (37,065) 31,908
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BRE S - LUBITTHIR)

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT'D) 15 BE2&RBL2ZEY (&)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RMETEBFEECEEYHER: (&)
activities: (CONT'D)

Loan
from the
immediate
Finance Other holding Debt  Accrued
Bank loans leases loans  company Securities Interest Total
ERER
RITEY ®WEHE HeEX QAEZER  BE%EF  EHAR #st
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD’000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TET THET TET THET THET THET THERT

Exchange EHAE

adjustments = - - - - - -
Changes in fair AHERE

value - = - - - - -
Other changes: Hitn2 s

Finance charges on MEARERE
obligations under JREER

finance leases - 14 - - - - 14
Amortisation of BB R

discount of debt EEESF

securities issued B - - - - 101 = 101
Interest expenses FERZ - - - - = 37,352 37,352
Total other changes ~ EftE &)@z - 14 - - 1071 37,352 37,467

At 28 February 2018 R=Z—-N\&
—A=tNH 80,100 297 291,623 126,000 162,452 3,383 663,855
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16 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 16 HBITERREX

The details of the bank loans and overdrafts were as follows:

RITER LB ZHFBOT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE—N\EF
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
Unsecured bank overdrafts (note 16(a)) EIIRITE X
(MIE16(a)) 5,267 4,997
Bank loans, secured (note 16(b)) IRITEF  AEE
(Ht3E16(b)) 50,000 47,000
Bank loans, unsecured (note 16(c)) IRITEF - EIEH
(H¥3E16(0)) 28,683 33,100
78,683 80,100
Total bank loans and overdrafts — repayable RITERRE B~
within 1 year or on demand M FERSHIZEREE 83,950 85,097

(@) At 28 February 2019, unsecured bank overdraft
facilities of $11.5 million (28 February 2018: $11.5
million) were provided to the subsidiaries and utilised
to the extent as disclosed above.

(b) At 28 February 2019, uncommitted secured revolving
bank loan facility of the lower of $50.0 million (28
February 2018: $50.0 million) and a certain percentage
of the aggregate principal amount of the mortgage
loan receivables of a subsidiary which are then charged
to the banks were obtained. The tenor for the facility
ranged from one to six months as selected by the
subsidiary. As at 28 February 2019, the available
uncommitted banking facility after taking into
consideration of the drawdown was $Nil (28 February
2018: $3.0 million). The uncommitted secured revolving
bank loan facility was secured by loan receivables with
a carrying value of approximately $266.3 million (28
February 2018: $114.0 million).

(¢) At 28 February 2019, unsecured bank loan facilities of
$28.7 million (28 February 2018: $53.1 million) were
provided to the Company and the subsidiaries and
utilised to the extent as disclosed above.

During the year, the Group had fulfilled all the financial
covenants, if any, under the Group’s banking facilities and

all banking facilities were guaranteed by the Company.
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@ MN-ZE-—AF-_A=-F+NB HEBAF
HELRAE11,500,000c (ZE—NF A
—+/\H :11,500,0007T ) EEIMR1TE
S RE  WEBA EXIFESE -

by RNZE—AEFE-A=+/\B KEBATE
BSEAFERFRRETENRRE &8
450,000,000t (ZZE—N\F=_A=+N
H : 50,000,000 ) X MB A A& RE K
T RITZERIZIBIRIFE KA B58
CETEALZEREE BERHA—
EXRNEAATE AZMBAREE -R=
ZT—NF-_A=-+NB  Eet RERRK
B ABAZEARBRITREAS I (=
T— )\ H=+/\H :3,000,0007c) °
A E A RERBTERRENERRA
E#1/5266,300,0007T (—E— N\FE_A
—-+/\H :114,000,0007T ) 2 fEd &z 1E
A o

(¢ M-ZE—NAF-_A=-+N\H KXAaKEH
BN R ERRE28,700,0000T ( —F— )\ F
—A=+/\H :53,100,0007T ) KR
TER@E WEBHALLNAMEESE-

FRARBCBEITAKRBRITBREBR T ZMA
iR (WA)  MABARITRESIHAANRF
TERHELR o
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ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 BstERREMENRE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\EF
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Accrued interest expenses FEET A BRI 3,125 3,383
Accrued expenses EErERARY 2,295 2,184
Provision for long services payment RERTS SR 687 559
Other payable and deposit received EoAth fE T 308 & B W EUR S 584 573
6,691 6,699
All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be FRBEETE R KA MENRIBIEHAR —FRE
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. BRIRERKEE -
OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 18 REMEEHRIE
The Group had obligations under finance leases repayable AREBREEZ TEMEHSHAENT :

for motor vehicle as follows:

2019 2018
—2-hfE —2-N\F
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHAE RIEHEE xEHEE HEHE
MIELRE MIEEE SIRRE FIRMEEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Fx Tt Tt
Within 1 year 1A 76 76 221 228
After 1 year but within 5 1F&BB5FA
years - - 76 77
76 76 297 305
Less: Total future interest W AR R B
expenses FEE - (8)
Present value of lease HEFFERE
obligations 76 297
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19 OTHER LOANS

During the year ended 28 February 2019, the Group
obtained uncommitted secured revolving loan facilities from
an independent third party. The limit of the facilities is the
lower of $440.3 million (28 February 2018: $458.6 million)
and a certain percentage of the aggregate principal amount
of the mortgage loan receivables of the subsidiaries which
are then sub-charged/sub-mortgaged to the independent
third party. The facilities are interest-bearing at Prime Rate
plus 2% (currently 7.125%) and the tenor for the facilities is

one year.

As at 28 February 2019, the available uncommitted loan
facilities after taking into consideration of the drawdown
was approximately $Nil (28 February 2018: $14.4 million).
These loan facilities were secured by mortgage loan
receivables for the Group with a carrying value of $331.5

million (28 February 2018: $384.5 million).

20 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administrated by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000.

Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

21 LOANS FROM THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING

COMPANY

During the year ended 28 February 2019, the Group
obtained an unsecured revolving loan facility from the
immediate holding company with a facility limit of $200.0
million (28 February 2018: $200.0 million). The loans are
interest-bearing at 5% (28 February 2018: 5%) per annum

and repayable within one year.

At 28 February 2019, the available loan facility after taking
into consideration of the drawdown was approximately $106
million (28 February 2018: $74.0 million) and the accrued
interest payable as of 28 February 2019 was $173,000 (28

February 2018: $252,000).
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HE K

HE_ZT-—hE-_A -+ N\BILFEE REEH
— BB FE =BG EAREERBERERR
& - BRIENE R 58 5440,300,0000T (ZZ— N\
£ = F =+ /)\H :458,600,0007T ) & ZZEH B
AREIEEE RN, NIRTEZEBILE=TT 2 IE
UWIZIB IR ERAC BB ETA D L ZEIK
HoRBRHERFEM% (BRIA7.125% )
ATENBARBA—F-

R-ZF—AFE_A=1+/\B & RERRK
B ASRAZEAZERRENEST L (ZF
—N\E=ZA=1+/\H :14,400,0007T) ° L HEE
R A ABREE A331,500,0007T (ZZE—/)\4F
— A=+/\H :384,500,0007T ) < 7= & f& Ul
RREAE R -

EBERAKER

ERBEFRNEE
AEBREFERHMELAERFTIGISRE
BREBROFZERZE 2EERERFHIER
Eestd (ARS8 ) BT ZRARER -8
BE8 A HHBUREABTEZERMHK
RINGTE - RIBSRESHE BREINERESRR
AR EIEL SRR B HRAS% 2 3
A% A R4 A 30,0007 5 ER - M2 #
TRENES 57 8

EBEEZRABZER

HE_ZT-—hhE-_A-+N\BILFEE AEEH
EEZEBRARDRE —EHEAERERRE
& R %85200,000,000T (ZE—N\E_H
—+J\H :200,000,0007T) ° ZEEHKIZ5%
(ZE—NFZA=+N\B 5% ) 2FHF=E5
B ER—FANEE-

RZE—AF-_A=-+NH Kt RD2IER
KB A BACENRBEL A106,000,0007T

—FE—NF=-A=+1+/\H :74,000,0007T) °
MR —ZE—hAE-A=-+N\RB  ENEF
BA173,000c (ZE—N\F=-_A=-_+\B:
252,0007T ) °
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DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

The debt securities are unsecured, denominated in HKD,
interest-bearing ranging from 6% to 7% per annum with
interest coupon being paid semi-annually and will mature
between 2021 and 2025. All debt securities issued are
measured at amortised cost.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

22

23

ERITEERS
ZEBEBEAEERE  UBTE BN T
6%ET% 2 FHNEFELTEEFEIN—KE
E BN T —FE_FT_AFHHER-
Fr B B B1T1EE 5 5 TR B SR AR5t &= o

RER & MR R R Z TS Bt

(a) REFESHBMRRRZENPHIELE

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
$'000 $'000
I T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for FREBHETEE

the year (note 8(a)) (Ft=E8(@a)) 20,769 19,613
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT EHFEH (14,564) (14,661)
6,205 4,952

Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to & BB FE 2 FS T EE
prior years e (245) 885
5,960 5,837
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23

134

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

INCOME TAX

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONT'D)

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and

the movements during the year are as follows:

23 REEMBRRRZHAER (&)

(b) ERRAZELEHREEE:
RER B BN R IR BB IR & E A
FEB D AR FRZ ZEINT :

The related
depreciation Impairment
in excess of losses on
depreciation loans and
allowances advances Others Total
HEHTE
BEz EBERREBERZ
HEATE BEEE Hit st
$'000 $000 $'000 $000
T T T T
Deferred tax arising ERERIE
from: RE:
At 1 March 2017 RZT—+F
=H—H 137 48 45 230
Credited/(charged) to T ABE
profit or loss (note (RiER
8(a)) HER)
(BFzE8()) 24 (33) - 9)
At 28 February 2018 R_T—N\F
—R=Z+N\H 161 15 45 221
At 1 March 2018 RZT—N\F
=H—H 161 15 45 221
Impact on initial BRERABH
application of HKFRS B
9 AERIFI5E 2
2 = (15) = (15)
Credited/(charged) to SFABRS
profit or loss (note (R
8(a)) kR
(PF3E8(a)) (142) 165 - 23
At 28 February 2019 RZTE—NF
—A=+N\H 19 165 45 229

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR



Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HZE—
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) ( ﬁ”f\%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ%’yl\ LA TTAIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group's

B B AR B RE

—NEZA-+N\ALFE

24 EXR - ERRE

(a)

REERHNH 22D
A B A ER S AR %WE%X#
BIUBRRGAMSEDE AR

\

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated 1[E] 4 2 4B B 2B 2 E’\\\i%ﬂii?ﬁZ@@Jﬁ |E
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes NS
in the Company's individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company ARa]
Capital
Share Other redemption Accumulated
Note  Share capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
i3 Bx  ROEE b EXRORE RitER st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
it Tt Tt Tt Tt 7t
At 1 March 2017 R-B-tF
=A-H 21,376 207,573 56,964 - (6,587) 279,326
Total comprehensive ERZERA
income for the year fk - - - - 804 804
Final dividend approved in 3t F—fHEE
respect of the previous PETRER
year and paid during KT 2 RES
the year MR & 24(b)(i) - (14,750) - - = (14,750)
Interim dividend declared ~ RERZR R
and paid during the it
year ) 24(b)(i) - (16,401) - - - (16,401)
Purchase of own shares  EEEIA F R 24(c)(ii) (502) (20,064) - 502 - (20,064)
At 28 February 2018 and R=E-N%
1 March 2018 ZA=tNR
k=%-N\f
=A-H 20,874 156,358 56,964 502 (4,783) 229,915
Total comprehensive ERZERA
income for the year ek - - - - (35) (35)
Interim dividends declared ~ RERE KR
and settled in cash and NRERRE
scrip during the year R &R
RS 24(0)() 8 (15,840) - - - (15,832)
Purchase of own shares  EEEIE F ) 24(c)(ii) (1,497) (50,367) - 1,497 - (50,367)
At 28 February 2019 R=B-N§
ZA=tNR 19,385 90,151 56,964 1,999 (4,818) 163,681
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(CONT'D)
(b) Dividends

(i)  Dividend paid and payable to equity shareholders (i)

of the Company attributable to the year:

X -meEkks (8)

FARRMNMENAAR SRR Z

BB

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Interim dividend declared and paid BEIR &R 2 R B
of $0.83 cents per ordinary share B EmAR0.831L
(28 February 2018: $0.78 cents per (ZZE—N\F=H
ordinary share) (note) Z+N\R: BREER
0.78{l1) (BfFE) 16,086 16,401
Final dividend proposed after the R EEARE IR 2 R ER
end of the reporting period of IR S BRI MAR0. 7311
$0.73 cents per ordinary share (Z=—N\F=A
(28 February 2018: $Nil cents per Z+N\R: ZREER
ordinary share) =) 14,151 =

Note: Interim dividend was satisfied by way of cash
of $15,832,000 and scrip issuance in lieu of
the cash payment as selected by shareholders.
The scrip dividend was satisfied by allotment of
836,000 shares of the Company and was credited

as fully paid.

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (ii)
Company attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year:

MteE . REIRR B AR £ 15,832,000 Tk
M RIZRRTE S BEITRER
MUREBERSIRMN - RERDE
B 3£836,000 % AN A A AR {5k

NI ARRINERE

FARAEMRN 2 E— A REFE
RN AR BEGRBIR Z AR -

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
S T
Final dividend in respect of the T — B EHE A ROk A
previous financial year, approved 2 = — BB B SRR
and paid during the following year, A% S A% i AR I
of $Nil cents per ordinary share —F-N\F: HK
(2018: $0.69 cents per ordinary T EA%0.6910)
share) - 14,750

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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X meEkks ()

(CONT'D)
(c) Share capital () E&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREZBITEKRA
2019 2018
—E-1E —E-N\F
Nominal Nominal
value of value of
Number of ordinary Number of ordinary
Note Par value shares shares shares shares
M3 HfE RO#E  EEREE Rir&E  TREREE
$ ‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
T TR Tr Ti T
Authorised: BE:
At 28 February R=A=+AR 001 100,000,000 1,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 1 March 201822017  R=F—/\%E/
i S
=A—H 0.01 2,087,360 20,874 2,137,624 21,376
Scrip dividend issued BETRERR 24(c)(ii) 0.01 836 8 = =
Purchase of own shares  EBEIE &) 24(c)(ii) 0.01 (149,728) (1,497) (50,264) (502)
At 28 February 2019/  R=ZE—NE=A
28 February 2018 —thR/
—IT-\F
—RA=t/N\H 0.01 1,938,468 19,385 2,087,360 20,874
The holders of shares are entitled to receive DB ABREKETES KR
dividends as declared from time to time and are B WHERARAEE% EERR
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the DI’ —F o FTE R EARR R 2 Fgk
Company. All shares rank equally with regard to BEHZHRFHA -
the Company'’s residual assets.
(ii) Scrip dividend issued (i) EETREKRG

At the meeting of the Board held on 29 October
2018, the Board declared an interim dividend
of $0.83 cent per share, totalling $16,146,000,
with a scrip dividend option for the six months
ended 31 August 2018. The interim dividend was
distributed out of share premium. Ordinary shares
of 836,000 were issued by the Company in order
to satisfy shareholders’ scrip dividend elections
and the relevant scrip price for these shares is
$0.30 per share. These shares rank pasi passu
with the existing ordinary shares in all respects.

The share premium was decreased by $15,840,000
as a result of the interim dividend. Of which,
$15,832,000 represents the amount settled by
cash and approximately $8,000 represents the
par value of the ordinary shares issued.

RZZE-—NEFE+A=ZF+NLBEET
ZEEEEZR L ETEeREE
—E-—NFENA=+—HIENE
AEIRF HRESFM0.837L r &
16,146,000 * AIRIBLAREAR S o A
HARR B B R0 s B R K © AN A A1 E
77836,0000% I 1/ A% LA i 2 328 1 LA A%
REZBE  mtERD 2 EERE
%158 A =A%0.307T ° tkFR M ES
FEEE A TERE A RSN

1% 17 %= B A 2k 2 3% B s 2
15,840,0007T ° E A - 15,832,0007T
BURGHEE 2 &5 M#8,0007T
BlAB T @R 2 EE -
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(c)

Share capital (CONT’D)

(iii) Purchase of own shares

During the financial year ended, the Company
repurchased 149,728,000 shares of the Company
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
with prices ranging from HK$0.305 to HK$0.345.
The total consideration paid for these shares was
$50,367,000. All these shares were cancelled by
28 February 2019.

Particulars of the shares repurchased during the
year are as follows.

() B4 (&)
(i) FEEE 5 R 15
RUBFEFER ARAFREBB
ERSGMARRARIZNT0.305%
JTLE0.345B L 2 BHRER AR 7
149,728,000 f% 17 ° Bt itk A% 1D
2tz #K{EA&50,367,0007T °
FrBEHERMENR-_E—HLE=A
—+/\BHATEH

BERFACBLORM 2FHBWT -

Purchase price per share

BRBEE
Number Aggregate
of shares consideration
repurchased after expense
(“000) Highest Lowest (“000)
=] -1c wRE
BRGEE (HMBRBAZ %)
Month A& () B BIK (Fm)
Mar-18 —T—-NF=A 62,232 $0.345 $0.315 21,422
Apr-18 —E—N\FHA 2,104 $0.345 $0.330 716
May-18 —T—)\$H1AH 30,000 $0.345 $0.335 10,217
Jun-18 —ZE—NFRA 25,000 $0.335 $0.325 8,186
Jul-18 —E—-N\FtA 9,544 $0.330 $0.315 3,055
Aug-18 —=—NFNA 7,688 $0.330 $0.305 2,440
Sep-18 —ZT-)\FNA 5,440 $0.335 $0.320 1,759
Oct-18 - )\$+H 6,064 $0.335 $0.325 2,028
Nov-18 —E-NF+—AH $0.335 $0.325 544
50,367

Total 4t 149,728

Pursuant to section 37(3) of the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of the repurchased shares. Pursuant to 37(4) of
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, an
amount equivalent to the par value of the shares
cancelled of $1,497,000 was transferred from
share premium to the capital redemption reserve.
The premium paid on the repurchased shares of
$48,870,000 was charged to share premium.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B3 Z{E SRR ER AT

BIERSHEERAREREITCME ARG ZE
BT A TR B B E AR 2 EE W E R - R
BRESHEATNEE37(4)E Dk oOm
81,497,000 c 2 EESHED B8R0 HEE R
EEAERNHFEE REBORGENZEE
48,870,0007CE B &7 @ E A 1k o
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 & --#ERRKRE (&)
(CONT’D)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Distributability of reserves

There is no section in the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
memorandum and article of association governing
the distribution of reserves. At 28 February
2019, the aggregate amount of reserve available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $142,297,000 (28 February 2018:
$208,539,000), being the net amount of share
premium, other reserve and accumulated losses.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company
may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

On 5 February 2013, Oi Wah Holding Limited
entered into an agreement to acquire the
amounts due to shareholders by Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Limited totalling $44,963,406
by issuing 1,000 shares at $1.00, as fully-paid
shares, to three of the shareholders of the
Company. The acquisition has been reflected as
a reduction in the amounts due to shareholders
and a corresponding increase in capital reserve.

Other reserve

On 18 February 2013, the then shareholders
transferred the entire equity interest in Oi Wah
Holding Limited to the Company, in return,
the Company issue 9,999,999 shares, as fully-
paid shares to Kwan Lik Holding Limited as
the consideration. The difference between the
historical carrying value of equity acquired and
acquisition consideration is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Other reserve”.

(d) REZEERE®

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EZ RS RELHE
HERESRRERANRG ZHEBE
BAEARERARINERERED
KZEf-RZZE—NF-_A=-1t)N\
B AR eESRE 2 Al D IR E
4E%A 5142,297,00070 ( ZZF— \F
—A=+/\H :208,539,0007T)
BNk s E - EfhfEfs R Rt Eig 2
SHFE o

R 155 E

REFASHEREE  ARALZKRM
i (B RR ] B HE D RSO ABLR T
PR - MEEREEE D KRN EE
Bi& ARAATREREBBRER X
NEHZ &R -

N

R-_ZT—=F_HAAH" 0i Wah
Holding Limited&] 37 &% « LAZE B
AR R =HARHETT1,0000 T
FE1.00c 2D - WS &
44,963,406 T2 BEREEEFR
RNEIERIRERRIE - R A e
AR R IR R > e & 7 e AR P 4
hne

HtfEE

MRZZE—=F"A+/1\B ERERKRE
MA R EEZEENOI Wah Holding
LimitedZz 2 ZPAx A % - AR FIHA
A Kwan Lik Holding Limited31T
9,999,999k & B’ IR D ERMRAB  FF
Wi 2 BAREEEKERE
LEBRRBR R —BEREE WA
[EfhRERE]
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(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (CONT'D)

(v)

(vi)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the
nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost. The Group was not subject to
externally imposed capital requirements, except
for the capital, current ratio and gearing ratio
requirements attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to
its debt position. The Group’s strategy was to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position with the debt equity ratio, being the
Group's total borrowings over its total equity, no
more than 150%, and ensure there was adequate
working capital to service its debt obligations.
As at 28 February 2019 the Group and the
Company’s debt equity ratio were 73.6% (28
February 2018: 84.4%) and 107.7% (28 February
2018: 77.0%) respectively.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B3 Z{E SRR ER AT

(d)

HEZETRE H ()

v)

(vi)

EXEE#E
EXABEFEHRECBRRO 2@
B

BAXEE
AEBEREAZHEZRBEDNRE
AEBIFBERLLE 2T e BY
HERKFEEZEREEARE
BEERAZRE  HESEBIRE
BRI R BEMESSE ABIER
o AKERB R HRIMBIEINNE
ARE FHREEMENER R
R R BB RRERRIN

REEEG N ERHEARREBET
ma MEE  NERRRRERER
TAEFEZESEEKFERY
BB AR 5 R 2 o B R AR R 2 [
RSP R B IEIRR 2 B3
BEARGBIELTRE -

AEBBREEEBERRERER-
REEZREREERESREBE
RIEEREE - BERERLLER (AIARE
BrRaEERAEERARE) T8
B150%  WHERERHEBEESE
BEHX - RZZ—NAEF-_A=+N
H AEBRARRZAGBEETL
AR AE736% (ZE—NE_HA
“+NH:84.4%)%107.7% (=
E—NF_A=+NH:77.0%) °
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUE

As the core business of the Group is engaged in secured
financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and
mortgage loans, the main risks associated with its business
are credit risk and the need to maintain a fairly liquid
position.

(@) Credit risk management

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to its loan receivables. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the Group have established policies and systems
for the monitoring and control of credit risk.

The Group has developed and adopted a systematic
approach in running its business in an efficient way,
including the adoption of internal control procedures
for risk management purposes.

The Group manages its credit risk on a conservative
basis by evaluating its loan portfolio in relation of
guantitative risk/return criteria.

In relation to the pawn loan business, the Group
has adopted internal control procedures including
the identification and evaluation of ownership and
obtaining an accurate valuation of personal property.
The Group usually grants loans with a loan-to-value
ratio ranging from 50% - 85%, depending on the
type of collateral and the valuation is made at the
point of granting the loan. The maximum exposure of
the credit risk arising from pawn loan business at the
end of each reporting period is the carrying amount of
the pawn loan receivables as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

BERREERAVE

HRAREZZLEBANEENEHEMA
E (BERAEERRRBEMRER) %75 i
HEXBHEBzIZRRAEERRRERAE
RBEERRLZFEK

(a) FERRERE
AEBERT NN RERTEEETMH SR
MEBREMEEMEAR 2 &ZeEERR
RIFBMBAARMAZEFEE KA
B -AKEZEERRIZHRANEEK
EX - R EERARBERE AREC
1 BUR Nl E BB MR FIE B AR

AEECRERRA-BERCHR A
FEAMmz TARLEERT  BREARR
EESENMRA L ARREERT -

AEEEBTEEERAAZERAR,
DR - RFEE SRS -

HHMEERERM S AREEEMAAE
R BiEH R R A R G
BAEZ ERGEE - BIEKFRZHE
A REB—RIEN T50% E85% 2 B
HAELRERER  HERERE R
B - RBREHR BREEREBE
2 & EERRBLRE MISHK R it
ZEWEE B REE -
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(a)

142

Credit risk management (CONT’'D)

Different valuations are used for different types of
collaterals.

- Gold prices quoted from The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society

- Diamond prices quoted from latest Rapaport
Diamond Report

- Watches quoted from either retail listed prices or
parallel import wholesale prices

- Consumer electronic products quoted from
updated pricelists of second-hand consumer
electronic products

A customer is considered to have defaulted in
repayment of the pawn loan if they have not redeemed
the collateral or renewed the pawn loan by the end
of the term of the pawn loan. At the Group's sole
discretion, a grace period of up to six weeks may be
provided to customers after the end of the loan period
during which the Group may allow the customers to
renew the pawn loan and/or redeem the collateral.
The Group will take possession of the collateral if
the customer has not redeemed the collateral or
renewed the pawn loan by the end of the loan period
or the grace period provided. Repossessed assets are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2(l) and the carrying amount
of repossessed assets as at 28 February 2019 was
$6,451,000 (28 February 2018: $8,108,000). The
Group will proceed to dispose of the collateral within a
reasonable time after possession.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR

EERBEE (#)
TRBE 2 HIRRERTRIGETE

- SREEFEMBIAZER

- BEAmERABIELER

- TEEBER%FT
|2 FREMR

#E ORI EARPT

- —FTHEETEMZENERRM
HOHBEEFEMER

REEERERAERA - WEFWEED
MABEAREER  ZZXFAUERA
E%KE EHEER - AEE 2 EME
AEREBERHARHERERNRPIREREN
FEHZERE REBHEAN  A5E
AAFREFEERE BN K E DA
o A E FREABR sk iRt 2 EPR HAAE R Al
WP EELC IR RKEEREE K
AEEKEFEMR - LU E & EREH
A2V E 2 HRAR R=Z— AN
F_AZF+N\B KREEEZERE@ER
6,451,000 (ZE—NF=-_A=+N\H:
8,108,0007T) - AEBBREFIEAME
ZAEREAHEERAR-
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VALUE (CONT'D)

(a)

Credit risk management (CONT’'D)

In relation to the mortgage loan business, the Group
has also adopted internal control procedures for the
identification and evaluation of the legal ownership
and accurate valuation of property. As a matter of
risk management, the Group usually grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property, which
is generally lower than bank’s loan-to-value ratio for
mortgages which can be as high as 70%. In a few
cases if the customers request loans with the loan-
to-value ratio of over 70%, approval from the chief
executive officer is required. For the valuation of the
property, the Group will make reference to a third
party valuer and/or the internet valuation services
provided by banks in Hong Kong. The Group holds
collateral against loan receivables in the form of
mortgages over properties located in Hong Kong. The
Group considers that the credit risk arising from the
mortgage loan receivables is significantly mitigated by
the property held as collateral, with reference to the
estimated market value of the property at the grant
date. The Group may take possession of assets held
as collateral through court proceeding or voluntary
delivery of possession by the borrowers. It disposes the
property by auction once taking the possession.

Management has overall responsibility for the Group's
credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the
Group’s loan portfolio. In addition, management
reviews the ECL allowances of loans and receivables
at each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for the expected
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, management
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 7.6% (28 February 2018: 12.4%) and 35.9%
(28 February 2018: 41.4%) of the total loan receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.

(a)

EERAYE (&)

FERRER (&)

RIRBERAEREBM S ARETFCK
FRREBEIEIR T - AR R EHEZ
REARNEEGE  HRERERE)N
HAREBERIZREHEMERS
WEE70% 2 EREEEL RERER -
L R —RRAERIRITRAIRIBER = E70%
ZEFEBELE EXEFRT  MHE
PERLZNT0% 2 EREEEL RN
B RIARGITRAS 21 E - Y
e AEEB2RE=FHEMR %
FRRITAIIRE 2B LEERS - AEE
MR B 2 B E RIS A 7 A 5L FE UL

ERFEEAR - ARERR 2B
EATEHZ': Bfz st miE  BRIRIBERE

FELZEERBREFEEERRZY
%ﬂﬁﬁfﬂa/mfﬁ AEB B BARFDK
HERABTNEMEEBFFERDD
BE - —BWREMEER AEEKER
HELEERYE-

EEEHAKEZEERRAEERE X
EEAREEEREEZEEER - 1IN
ERENZHE D PEMER BRI
ZEHEERREE  ABRRERAA
Yo B SRR VR R SR E & 1R - BRI S -
EEERA/AKEZFEERRD KEMR
K-

AEBMAZGERREFEXIESRE
FZEBSFEMTE  HEXEERRSE
FEZRRASBEEERNE S EREFRT
7¥<x§7tﬂ RFTE - R HAR - ERE
BT 6% (T )\¢ A=Z+N
EI 12.4% ) %35.9% (ZE—N\F—H
Z+N\H:141.4% ) D RIREAEBEZEK
BEERAREE -
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(a)

(b)

Credit risk management (CONT’'D)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from loan
receivables are set out in note 13.

The Group has developed its processes for measuring
ECL including monitoring of credit risk, incorporation
of forward-looking information and the methodology
used to measure ECL. The Group has policies and
procedures in place to appropriately maintain the
models used to assess and measure ECL.

Market risk management

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rate.

Market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity
analysis. There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market risk or the currencies as the
financial assets and liabilities are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong dollars in which it manages and
measures the risk throughout the relevant period.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR

(a)

(b)

FERREE (&)

ERAKBERUERMELEZEERR
ZE—FEERBHNMEE3

AEECHRIRFAGERRERESR
EREREERR MAREEERRA
Mﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%Zﬁ%°$%@ﬂﬁ
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VALUE (CONT'D)

(b)

Market risk management (CONT’D)
Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
mortgage loan receivables, bank loans and overdrafts,
other loans and loans from the immediate holding
company. Mortgage loan receivables, unsecured loan
receivables, certain bank loans and overdrafts, other
loans, and loans from the immediate holding company
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

(i) Interest rate profile

The Group's interest rate positions arise from
lending activities. Interest rate risk primarily
results from the timing differences in the
repricing of interest-bearing assets, liabilities
and commitments. It also relates to positions
from non-interest bearing liabilities including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well
as from loans and liabilities.

Certain of the Group’s loan receivables (mainly
the pawn loans), debt securities issued and
bank loans and overdrafts are fixed rate.
Although subject to interest rate risk, they are
not remeasured in the financial statements
in response to changes in interest rates and
therefore changes in interest rate risk variables
would not affect reported profit or loss in the
short-term.

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 28 February 2019, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately $7,600,000 (28 February 2018:
$6,592,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change on the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

BERREERATE (&)

(b)

mEAREE (&)

T 21 B

AERE 2 F R E R EERE EKIRIBEAT
B RITERIEX - EMERARE
BERARZER - AFBFRE L E
Wiz R EH  EREERER 5T
RITER MBS R EFRAREBIEK
REIZEREAEEEAZR S TEN KR
B o

() FIFERE
AEBZHERFEREEEES - F
ZEREEHRHEEE  BENMK
EBERZHEMY - HEESR
B (BERRESRERKRP) AR
ERRAEZRHRAR-

AEFBETRUEER (TE2RRER
R BETEHRBSFARBITER
MEXRER - BEBMYNXRER -
HEAEpMEEHNUBHRRERN
AHE B FIRRBRRREHNE
HA TSR EM2 M B -

G

(i) BRE ST
R-ZE—-AE-A-+/N\R  &&F
REEEE T RFE1001EZES: - AT
EEMEERFTEZELT K&
BN 52 B R B 1804 A K 4R 28 32 ) 38
i,/ SE A #97,600,0007T ( ZZE— N\
F=- A =+/\H :6,592,0007T) °

ERBREIMIERRANEEFHR
BEMRCRELE  NEBZRHR
wA (RREEN) BiRa g’
ER D SEE 2 A EE) - —F— )\
FIREREEETON -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
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VALUE (CONT'D)

(c)

BHEREERAFE (&)

Liquidity risk management (0 HRBELERER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity REBECHRAEHERARDESTE
requirements and its compliance with loan/borrowing URELEEBFER EBERH  UERE
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient BB AR HEEARKRE T E S R
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of BrReA#mESHE UWENAERZ
funding from major financial institutions to meet its RERRARDESEE -
liquidity requirements in the short and long-term.
The following table details the remaining contractual TRAMAEERBERREZS LRI
maturities at the end of the reporting period of Rene (BEREOMNES (WBER)
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on BEREARBITMEFEZFE) F
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest BreBMBBECRBANER  URAE
payments computed using contractual rates or, if EREEEERE &FHE:
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:
2019
“B-NE
Total
contractual Within 1 More than 1  More than 2
Carrying undiscounted ~ year or on year but less years but less More than 5
amount cash flow demand than 2 years than 5 years years
BHRME MER 15U E 2N E
FHE BeREAE FRER  ELPHE BHR5E SELE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr T Tr Tr T
Accruals and other BT B A REA
payables JEfI3E 6,691 6,691 6,691 - - -
Bank loans and overdrafts  SETERRER 83,950 84,859 84,859 - - -
Obligations under finance ~ BEMEAIE
leases 76 76 76 - - -
Loans from the immediate  EEERARZ
holding company BR 94,000 94,072 94,072 - - -
Debt securities issued BETEBES 162,565 196,847 9,790 9,790 150,730 26,537
Other loans EfER 265,232 285,507 285,507 - - -
612,514 668,052 480,995 9,790 150,730 26,537
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 B EREER AFE (&)
VALUE (CONT'D)

(c) Liquidity risk management (CONT’D) (00 "BHELEREE (&)
2018
—E2-N\F
Total
contractual More than 1 More than 2
Carrying  undiscounted ~ Within 1 year  year but less  years but less ~ More than 5
amount cash flow orondemand  than 2 years  than 5 years years

AOARMR MER 1AL 2FHF
REE RERELE IEER  BESRFE BORSE SERE

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Accruals and other FEETE A R A
payables JEfT50E 6,699 6,699 6,699 - = =
Bank loans and overdrafts  SRITEZREX 85,097 85,917 85,917 = = =
Obligations under finance ~ BEHEAIE
leases 297 305 228 77 - -
Loans from the immediate  EEZRAGZ
holding company &% 126,000 126,116 126,116 - = -
Debt securities issued BERIEBES 162,452 206,637 9,790 9,790 146,582 40,475
Other loans it &3 291,623 315,223 315,223 - - -
672,168 740,897 543,973 9,867 146,582 40,475
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VALUE (CONT'D)

(d) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

Financial asset measured at fair value

()

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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(d)
(CONT'D)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R K M aE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BRE S - LUBITTHIR)

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

Financial asset measured at fair value (CONT’'D)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (CONT'D)

PBEREERQVE (&)
(d) SBMIAZAFENE (H)

BAFENBZEHEE (&
() RFEERE)

Fair value at
28 February

Fair value measurements as at 28 February 2019

categorised into

2019 R=ZF-NF-A=+tNBZ
R-Z—NF AEEFESIERUTER
—A=t+NBZ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AEE R F FE28% EET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Recurring fair value & HATE
measurement 2
Financial assets: ERMEE:
Loans receivables at  ZAFEFA
FVPL Bamz
JEMETR 120,977 - - 120,977
Fair value Fair value measurements as at 28 February 2018
at 28 February categorised into
2018 R=ZB-NFZA=+N\BZ
R=Z—N\fF AFEFEIERUTER
ZA=+NBZ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AEE 1R H28 H3R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Wi T T+t T
Recurring fair value  &FHERQFEE
measurement =
Financial assets: SREE:
Loans receivables at &2 F{EFTA
FVPL BEz
FEW SR - - - -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 Bi¥EREREERQFE (&)
VALUE (CONT’'D)
(d) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments (d €ETITRAZAFVEE (&)
(CONT'D)
Financial asset measured at fair value (CONT'D) BAFETEZLHMEE (&)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value (i) FE3RAFHETEHNEHR
measurements
The fair value of loans receivables at FVPL EAFEFABSZERERZ A
is determined using income approach by FETEBRAKRAEMIE S QK
discounting the contractual future cash flow. The RIBERMEAERE - A FEFTE R,
fair value measurement is negatively correlated to REZBIEM-
the discount rate.
The movement during the year in the balance of FEIRAFEAEEBNFERNZEH
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: W
28 February 2019 28 February 2018
—E-hF —=—)\F
—H=t+NHRH —A=+NHRH
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
At 1 March Rn=A—H - -
Transferred from loans receivables at RENE BB H 3R S 28
amortised cost upon adoption of F I 1& B IRE SHA AN
HKFRS 9 T2 2 EIE e 111,439 -
Loans granted BEMER 456,269 -
Loans matured B REIE R (446,728)
Net losses recognised in statement of REERARERZEIB
comprehensive income R (3) =
At 28 February R-—A=-+/\H 120,977 =
Total gains or (losses) for the year included st AZEWRARZR—A
in statement of comprehensive income T N\BREEEZFA
for assets held as at 28 February Wassk (E518) 5 (3) =
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26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases of properties are payable as
follows:

K EARIE

AEERBYMETAIHELEREZEBARRK

RIEHERIRBELT -

2019 2018

el —E—N\F

$'000 $'000

T 7T

Within one year —F R 12,432 9,149
After one year but within five years —FREBRFA 17,639 3,082
30,071 12,231

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
5 years. Lease payments are usually increased at the end of

AEBRBEREHEERZEAME - — KM= -
HEZMFZHRRI1ESF - HEFEBERHE
SR LR UARRTISHES - MEEES

the lease term to reflect market rentals. None of the leases FEHNHEE
includes contingent rentals.
The Group's total future minimum lease payments under AREERBEYENAIHELERE 2 BICRK
non-cancellable operating leases of properties are receivable BB EFIBETENT :
as follows:
2019 2018
—-nE  —2-)\F
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Within one year —F R 1,378 1,035
After one year but within five years —FEBRFR 956 468
2,334 1,503

The Group sub-leases out a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 to 5 years. Lease payments are usually increased at the
end of the lease term to reflect market rentals. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

AEEREBEEEHENHEZEYE - —RM = -
HEZNFHRB/IE5F - HEFEBERHE
EMERE LR URRMSHES - HEHES

BRAEE -
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXBELRS
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, transactions with the following parties are RER BTIEZZRGEEBEETRS
considered to be related party transactions:

Name of party Relationship with the Group

BESEER A8 BEALE 2 BR

Mr. Chan Chart Man Director

PRI SEAE 5=

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward Director and son of Mr. Chan Chart Man
BREIZR St 4 EERRREEZRT

Ms. Chan Ying Yu Director and daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man
PR T 22+ BENRRXEEZLR

Ms. Chan Mei Fong Director and daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man
BREES L+ EERRREEEZKSE

Ms. Chan Nga Yu Daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man

PR AR 22 & BREE S 2 252

Ms. Chan Kit Yu Daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man

BRORMm 2+ BREES S 2 252

Ms. Mui Hang Sin Spouse of Mr. Chan Chart Man

isEaX(ll e PR X S 4 2 BB

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion Son of Mr. Chan Chart Man

BREER e 4 BREEM 2 RF

Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Ltd. Controlled by Mr. Chan Chart Man
(“Kwan Chart Holding")

EXREEERAE ([BREH]) FR PR 2R S0P A
Kwan Chart Estate Company Ltd. Controlled by Mr. Chan Chart Man

(“Kwan Chart Estate”)
BREXARAR ([BHREBX]) FR PR 2R 39t A
Kwan Lik Holding Limited Immediate holding company

BHEERAT

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRUEHBRREMMEMNMEE 2 X5 RER
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered N REBEEIYA TERBEAIRS :

into the following material related party transactions:
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXBEAFRE (&)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) ETEEEASHM

2019 2018

—ZE-hF —E-NF

$'000 $'000

T 7T

Salary and other emoluments e REAMEE 6,874 6,418

Discretionary bonuses IEIEAL 5,045 5,160
Contributions to Mandatory Provident SR FIME AR R

Fund 90 90

12,009 11,668

(b) Transactions with other related parties

During the year, the Group entered into transactions

(b) BREMBAEL RS

FR-AKERERREEBEES HEEE

with related parties in the ordinary course of its AR ZRSWT
business as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
S T
Rental expense incurred to MUATEFTEACHERE
Kwan Chart Holding Z2XEH 960 960
Kwan Chart Estate HREZE 637 576
Mr. Chan Chart Man BRI 1,048 960
Rental deposit placed with BUTE I TFAZHEIES
Kwan Chart Holding Z2X5H 160 160
Kwan Chart Estate HRERE 110 96
Mr. Chan Chart Man BREE X e 180 160
Management fee incurred to HUATETEEZERE
Kwan Chart Estate BREBEHE 33 132
Management fee deposit placed with MUTETFAZERE
E&
Kwan Chart Estate HREZE 22 22
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXEEAFRXS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

28

154

(b)

INVESTMENTS

Transactions with other related parties (CONT'D)

The directors consider that all related party transactions
during the year were conducted on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group's business.

The related party transactions in respect of rental
expense incurred and management fee incurred
constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However
those transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule
14A.76(1).

IN SUBSIDIARIES,

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES AND
LOANS TO A SUBSIDIARY

ERMMES 2 RS ()
SERA ENHAREHIRSDE—R
FE RSN ARE R %R —REBBRD
47

(b)

EREELHSHAXREELEEEZH
BEHRXHEBREMRUFVAABRREZ
FEMERS AT ARZERHER
FVAAT6(MIFRT 2 &IEF BT - B
BB T ETRASEUAR ZRERE -

28 RITBARIZIRE -BWHEQF
ZHRERB—BHBLAAREZE

=h
TA

The Company

¥ /N
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZT-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Unlisted shares, at cost K EMEAG - HEKA 57,064 57,064
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INVESTMENTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES,
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES AND
LOANS TO A SUBSIDIARY (CONT'D)

At 28 February 2019, the Company has direct or indirect i

interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private
companies, particulars of which are set out below:

Notes to the Financial Statements

B B AR B RE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE2=-Z—hF A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5B 1583E& 4h » LABILYIR)

()

28 RBARIZIRE - BB AT
ZRERD—BNEBARREZE

—“T-ALZA=HNR  ARARTHM
BAT (2BHAULADR) BEEESRMER
3 - AR ERIIT

Name of company

Place and date of
incorporation/establishment

Issued and fully paid up
capital/registered capital

Attributable

equity interest

Principal activities

DAER AR, KLk %R A BRARMRES HMER  BERTER TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE EE
0i Wah Holding Limited British Virgin Islands (“BV1") 2,000 ordinary shares with no 100% - Investment holding
31 May 2012 par value RERR
EERAHE ([ARELHE]) 2,000 EREZ BB
S e
Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong Kong 22 March 2000 10,000,000 ordinary shares - 100% Pawn broking and
SERZXEEERAT ER-TTTF=A=1=H 10,000,0000% % &% money lending
H#E LHfE
Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited ~ Hong Kong 12 April 2012 1 ordinary share - 100% Pawn broking and
BEREEEBRAR FE-E-—EMA+=A 1REBR money lending
HE LE
Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong Kong 12 April 2012 1 ordinary share = 100% Pawn broking and
BERZEEERAT BE_Z-_#MA+=H HRE BR money lending
#E LHE
0i Wah Property Credit Limited Hong Kong 20 February 2014 1 ordinary share - 100% Money lending
BENZEEERRAT BA_E-MNF_A-TH 1REBR W&
Oi Wah Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 4 April 2014 1 ordinary share = 100% Consultant
BEMXERRA EA_Z-NEMAMA TRE B A R
0i Wah Credit Limited Hong Kong 29 January 2015 1 ordinary share - 100% Money lending
REEEARLA BE_Z-nFE-A-T/H RERR Bt
0i Wah Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 April 2015 1 ordinary share - 100% Inactive
REMBARRA BA_T-RFMA—A 1REBKR AL $S
0Oi Wah Mortgage Limited Hong Kong 1 April 2015 1 ordinary share = 100% Inactive
BERBERAA FAZT-HENA-A TRE B Y
0i Wah Pawnshop Limited Hong Kong 15 February 2016 1 ordinary share - 100% Inactive
BREMZARLA BE_Z-F-ATHA 1REBKR eSS
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29
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, 28
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES AND
LOANS TO A SUBSIDIARY (CONT'D)

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

Loans to a subsidiary are revolving, unsecured, interest-
bearing at 6% per annum and repayable on demand.

COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF 29

REBRARZRE

> FEUWRB B 2 A

ZRERE—BNBARREZE

()

FEWHIE AR Z FIAREER 2 RARE

e -

[ — R B ARIREZ &5
o RENE6%EE -

%F

AREEAZBRE
/,jﬁgj:'fgii °

R-ZZB-NF-A=Z+N\BZAH

FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 28 FEBRUARY TH B & AR R 3=
2019
Note 2019 2018
=2 —E-hE —\F
$'000 $'000
ST Tt
Non-current assets ERBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N th fE WA - 2,402
Investment in subsidiaries RHBRRZIEE 57,064 57,064
57,064 59,466
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULBT B A B 2 508 - 23,345
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M EUGRIR 227 3,290
Loans to a subsidiary m—RENBRFREZ
B 321,240 321,240
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIREFEY 1,734 3,016
Current taxation BNEAFR I8 - 98
323,201 350,989
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEET & A R B A FE T 5RIR 1,803 1,599
Bank loan RITER 13,683 14,681
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESHTB AR 2508 37,684 1,808
Current taxation B HEAFA 18 849 =
54,019 18,088
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29 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF 29 R-ZE—NAF-A=-+N\BAZ2AF
FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 28 FEBRUARY

2019 (CONT'D)

BT B IR R (&)

Note 2019 2018
BoaE —ZE-hF —ZE—N\F
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Net current assets RBEEFEHE 269,182 332,901
Total assets less current liabilities EELAERRBARE 326,246 392,367
Non-current liability FRBEE
Debt securities issued BETERES 162,565 162,452
NET ASSETS EEFHE 163,681 229,915
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXR#E 24
Capital (&N 19,385 20,874
Reserves itz 144,296 209,041
TOTAL EQUITY B 163,681 229,915
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors RZZE—NFRAZT+/N\BEEEFSHERR
on 28 May 2019. RETIZE

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward

BREAR T4
Director

EBEF

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
PRIEH 2+
Director

EF

Annual Report 2019 —ZT—NFFf

157



Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M aE

for the year ended 28 February 2019 HE=-ZT—hF-_A=-+/\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 38 f5BEE S - LUBITTHIR)

30

31
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IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 28 February 2019, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Kwan Lik Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the
BVI, and TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as trustee of a reserved power
discretionary trust for the benefit of Mr. Chan Chart Man,
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei
Fong, Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Chan Kit Yu, Ms. Mui Hang
Sin and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, which is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands, respectively. These entities do not
produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 28 February 2019 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

30 EERBARERS

31

RZZE-—NFZA=ZTNB EFZRE A5H
ZEBERRIRGERERA DR AREBR X
FS AL 2 Kwan Lik Holding Limited &7
FMEEEFMK 2 TMF (Cayman) Ltd. ( &R
WXk RS E - BRERAZ L -BRESX
T+ REMZ T RR¥MZ T BE I+ kR
BOEREEZFmMERRBENBNERETZE
FEA)  HEERBIEERHEARERN 2 MR
%o

BE-ZE—NF-HA=Z+N\BHL*E
ECEMEEKRERZIEET  FET
EARZEZBERE

BEHSMEHRRTZEEN FESFHMASE
BMETER] - #a] ERI K2 FER] &
AEAIRREBRBE_E-AF-_A=+/\H
I EFERARERERRZEFBERERFN - E
AIREERASKEARZERIMT -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

R B2 %R

SHHBEEX

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BEMBREENF 165 [1HE —E-N&E—H—H

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

e (AR BHRERBLRE Q) RBR230 [EHEEZ M EE ]

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
—E-RFE_T L FEPBENBREENFERCE
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2019 (CONT'D)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual
impact upon the initial adoption of this standard may
differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standard is initially
applied in the Group's interim financial report for the six
months ended 31 August 2019. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standard is initially applied in that financial
report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

Currently the Group classifies leases into finance leases and
operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The
Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others as
the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at
the present value of the minimum future lease payments and
will recognise corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2019 (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16, Leases (CONT’'D)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 March 2019 and will
not restate the comparative information. As disclosed in note
26, at 28 February 2019 the Group's future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to $30,071,000. Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the
opening balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding
right-of-use assets will be adjusted to $26,052,000, after
taking account the effects of discounting, as at 1 March
2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments
to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not
be material. However, the expected changes in accounting
policies as described above could have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statement from 2019 onwards.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BZEREEEERERAR
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